
Children's Commissioning Committee 
In line with advice from HM Government, the council is now holding only essential 
meetings. This plays a part in helping us to maintain the safety of the public, staff and 
councillors. These meetings are being held electronically and you will be able to view 
them using the link below.   

However, the City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public 
involvement and input into the decision-making process. 

Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, 
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by 
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda. 

Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place.

Decision notices or minutes from meetings will be available as appropriate. Should you 
wish to view decisions taken meetings of the Cabinet and other Lead Member 
Briefings, they will be available for viewing on the council website - 
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx

Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus

DATE: Wednesday, 8 July 2020

TIME: 9.30 am

VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting

AGENDA

09:30AM 

1  Welcome and Introductions. (Chair) 

2  Apologies for absence. 

3  To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 11 March, 2020. 

(Pages 1 - 6)

4  Matters arising. 

09:40AM 

5  Finance Update (David Warhurst) (Pages 7 - 28)

10:00AM 

Public Document Pack

https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx
https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus


6  Recovery Planning (Charlotte Ramsden) (Pages 29 - 64)

10:20AM 

7  Business Planning (Karen Proctor) (Pages 65 - 82)

10:40AM 

8  Perinatal and Infant Mental Health (Deborah Blackburn / Michelle 
Whittaker) 

(Pages 83 - 108)

11:00AM 

9  Urgent Business - Part 1 (Open to the Public) 

10  Exclusion of the Public 

11  0-19 Service Annual report (Deborah Blackburn) (Pages 109 - 130)

11:15AM 

12  Ingleside Birth and Community Centre (Karen Proctor / Nick 
Browne / Eejay Whitehead) 

(Pages 131 - 138)

13  Urgent Business Part 2 (Closed to the Public) 

14  Date and time of next meeting - Wednesday 9 September 2020 at 
9.30am 

Contact Officer: Mike McHugh, Senior Democratic Services Officer
Tel No: 0161 793 3011
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


1 | P a g e

CHILDREN’S COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE

11 March 2020

9.30 a.m. to 11.57 a.m.

PRESENT: Nick Browne (NB) - in the Chair
 
Members:

Councillor John Merry, CBE (JM) Deputy City Mayor and Lead Member for Children’s and 
Young People Services (SCC)

Councillor John Walsh (JW) Executive Support Member for Education and Learning
(SCC)

Steve Dixon (SD) Chief Accountable Officer (CCG)
Councillor Jane Hamilton (JHa) Executive Support Member for Social Care and Mental 

Health (SCC)
Kate Jones (KJ) Neighbourhood Lead (CCG)
Karen Proctor (KP) Director of Commissioning (CCG)
Francine Thorpe (FT) Director of Quality and Innovation (CCG)
David Warhurst (DW) Chief Finance Officer (CCG)
Joanne Hardman (JH) Chief Finance Officer (SCC)

In Attendance:

Eejay Whitehead (EW) Senior Service Improvement Manager 
(Children & Maternity) (CCG)

Debbie Blackburn (DB) Assistant Director of Public Health Nursing and 
Wellbeing (SCC)

Emily Edwards (EE) Senior Integrated Commissioning Manager (SCC)
Harry Golby (HG) Assistant Director of Commissioning (CCG)
Jane Case (JC) Senior Programme Manager (Integrated 

Commissioning) (SCC)
Mike McHugh (MM) Senior Democratic Services Officer (SCC)

1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

1.1. NB welcomed those present to the meeting, extending a personal welcome to David 
Warhurst, the newly appointed Chief Finance Officer at the CCG, to his first meeting 
of the Committee.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.1. Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Tom Regan, Councillor Bill 
Hinds, Charlotte Ramsden and Muna Abdel Aziz.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Page 2 of 5
Children’s Commissioning Committee
11 March 2020

3. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

3.1. No conflicts of interest were declared in respect of the items included on the agenda 
for this meeting.

4. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

4.1. The minutes of the meeting held on 22 January 2020, were approved as a 
correct record.

5. MATTERS ARISING

5.1. There were no matters arising.

6. FINANCE UPDATE

6.1. DW presented a finance report which provided the Children’s Commissioning 
Committee (CCC) with an in-year update on how the children’s element of the 
Integrated Fund was performing in the financial year (2019/20). 

6.2. He confirmed that the report was based upon financial information for month 10 
(January 2020). He reported that, the children’s element of the Integrated Fund is
currently forecasting to overspend by £7.1m in 2019/20. This is a worsening of 
£0.2m from the last finance report to January’s CCC, which had a forecast year end 
overspend of £6.9m.

6.3. He presented details, section 2 of the report, the main areas of over and under 
spend within the children’s Integrated Fund. The main area of overspend related to 
Looked After Children service line, of which £4.8m relates to Out of Area 
placements.

6.4. He also presented details, section 3 of the report, on the progress of the impact to 
date of the additional £3m Salford CCG investment into Children’s services to test a 
new model of care and increase staffing in Salford which should reduce the number 
of out of area placements. 

6.5. Any financial savings associated with this investment have not been included in this 
year’s financial forecast to date. The new model went live in November 2019. An 
update report was presented at Service and Finance Group (SFG) in March 2020.

6.6. The Children’s Commissioning Committee noted the report relating to the in-
year and forecast position for the Children’s Integrated Fund for 2019/20.

Page 2



Page 3 of 5
Children’s Commissioning Committee
11 March 2020

7. SALFORD THRIVE PLAN UPDATE

7.1. DB and EE presented a report which 

(a) provided an update on CAMHS Transformation funded activity in 2018/19 
and 2019/20 and outlined investment plans for 2020-21 which form part of 
Salford’s integrated ‘Thrive’ work programme for Children and Young 
People’s Emotional Health and Wellbeing (EHWB) and Child and Adolescent 
Mental Health Services (CAMHS) Transformation Plan, and 

(b) sought support and feedback on the Salford Thrive Plan Update 2020 and 
priorities outlined for next year.

7.2. Details of the contents of the Salford Thrive Plan were presented, and included –

(a) introduction and local context

(b) updates on commissioned service activity and performance

(c) finance and investment information, including details of expenditure over the 
past 5 years from 2014-15 to 2019-20 and investment plans for 2020-21

(d) an update to the All Age Mental health strategy and work programme

(e) updates and progress against the priorities agreed last year

(f) the key priorities for 2020-21

7.3. The Children’s Commissioning Committee noted progress on the Thrive work 
programme in 2018/19 / 2019/20.

7.4. The Children’s Commissioning Committee supported the publication of the 
Salford Thrive Plan (Update March 2020) on Salford CCG and Council 
websites.

7.5. The Children’s Commissioning Committee supported the proposed priorities 
and plans for 2020-21.

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

8.1. RESOLVED: THAT, under section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as specified in 
paragraphs 2 and 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act.

Page 3



Page 4 of 5
Children’s Commissioning Committee
11 March 2020

9. INGLESIDE BIRTHING & COMMUNITY CENTRE UPDATE

9.1. The Children’s Commissioning Committee received a report which provided an 
update on Ingleside Birth and Community Centre, which included options for 
consideration and decision.

9.2. Consideration was given to the options which had been formulated following 
discussions which took place at this Committee in January 2020.

9.3. The Children’s Commissioning Committee noted the content of the report and 
determined a preferred option in response to the ongoing events.

10. RE-ADMITTANCE OF THE PUBLIC

10.1. RESOLVED: THAT the public be re-admitted to the meeting.

11. OPERATION ENCOMPASS

11.1. The Children’s Commissioning Committee received a report which provided details 
of Operation Encompass.

11.2. JC reported that Operation Encompass was a partnership initiative led by Greater 
Manchester Police. It followed in the footsteps of an extremely successful initiative 
in Plymouth and Merseyside to safeguard and support children and young people in 
school, following a domestic abuse incident. 

11.3. JC noted that the update highlighted the findings from the initial evaluation. It 
recognised the progress of the initiative and detailed the recommendations and 
ongoing work to protect children from the impact of domestic abuse.

11.4. Over the evaluation period there were 454 notifications relating to 418 children and 
young

people. There was a significant difference in the amount of primary age children 
who were present when the police were called compared to Secondary aged 
children. There was evidence from the evaluation dip sample data and feedback 
from schools, that Operation Encompass was supporting positive outcomes for 
children and young people and their families in Salford. 

11.5. There were many examples of best practice across Salford. Many of the schools 
involved in the data collection, indicated that parents and families felt supported by 
the system and schools being able to follow up. Schools were increasingly aware of 
Children’s needs and they were being monitored and supported in school as well as 
referrals into other agencies such as Early Help. 

11.6. The evaluation of the work led to a range of recommendations to further improve 
and refine Operation Encompass in Salford, as detailed below - 

Page 4



Page 5 of 5
Children’s Commissioning Committee
11 March 2020

1. Recommendation- That work is undertaken to further understand the reasons 
for late notifications and how we can support partners in addressing this. Police are 
working to understand where and how this is happening.
2. Recommendation - There is an opportunity to review OE protocols to further 
protect those children with increased risk factors and pass on notifications even if a 
child isn’t present in the house at the time of the incident. If there is a Child 
Protection marker on the house, in this way we will be providing additional support 
to those most at risk by making the system more aware of the prevalence of DA.
3. Recommendation - To roll out Operation Encompass in early year’s settings
4. Recommendation - The findings of the school checklist to be fed into the 
Safeguarding Partnership and support for the School coordinators to encourage 
more schools to embed Operation Encompass.
5. Recommendation - More work to be undertaken with GMP so that they know 
who to contact in other neighbouring areas, cross boarder notifications.
6. Recommendation - To consider a wider campaign including a sports-based 
campaign, engaging with Manchester football clubs.
7. Recommendation - OE leads to work with Health to review the school protocols 
to identify opportunities to ensure the system has the information needed

11.7. It was confirmed that the developments were being overseen by the Operation 
Encompass Reference group and updates were fed back through to the Salford 
Safeguarding Partnership Board.

11.8. The Children’s Commissioning Committee noted the work to reduce the 
impact of Domestic Abuse for Children via the new initiative called Operation 
Encompass.

11.9. The Children’s Commissioning Committee approved the findings of the six-
month evaluation of Operation Encompass.

11.10. The Children’s Commissioning Committee approved the recommendations 
for further development of the programme.

12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

12.1. There were no items of any other business.

13. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

13.1. RESOLVED: THAT the next meeting of this Committee be held on Wednesday 
13 May 2020 at 9.30 a.m.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Please indicate time required to present the paper: 10

CHILDREN’S COMMISSIONING 
COMMITTEE (CCC) 

Part 1

Agenda item number: 

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information 

8th July 2020

Report of: David Warhurst, Chief Finance Officer

Date of paper: 30th June 2020

Subject: Integrated Fund Financial Plan Report (2020-21)

In case of query please contact: David Warhurst (0161 212 4892)

Strategic priorities (please mark with an X which priorities the paper 
relates to)

Priority Selection

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research: 

Integrated Community Care Services (Adult 
Services):

Children’s and Maternity Services: X

Primary Care: 

Enabling Transformation: X

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



Purpose of paper: 

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Children’s Commissioning Committee with:

 An update on the 2019/20 financial performance of the Integrated Fund for 
Children’s services.

 An update on the 20/21 financial planning of the Integrated Fund for Children’s 
services.

 An update on the Best Value programme for children’s services and the impact of 
the new model of care. 

Further explanatory information required

Question Answer

How will this benefit the health 
and wellbeing of Salford 
residents or the Clinical 
Commissioning Group?

Ensuring public funding is spent 
appropriately.  Achieving Value for Money, 
ensuring that funding is available to protect 
core services.

What risks may arise as a result 
of this paper? How can they be 
mitigated?

Financial risks to achieving a balanced 
financial budget are captured in section 5 of 
this report.  Mitigations to these risks are also 
identified in that section.

What equality-related risks may 
arise as a result of this paper?  
How will these be mitigated?

N/A

Does this paper help address any 
existing high risks facing the 
organisation? If so what are they 
and how does this paper reduce 
them?

N/A

Please describe any possible 
conflicts of interest associated 
with this paper.

N/A

Please identify any current 
services or roles that may be 
affected by issues within this 
paper.

None

Footnote: Members of Children’s Commissioning Committee (CCC) will read all papers thoroughly. Once 
papers are distributed no amendments are possible.

Page 8



  

Document development

Process Yes No Not 
applicable

Comments and date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report)

Outcome

Public engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation)



Clinical engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation)



Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social 
Value and the impacts on the residents of 
Salford socially, economically and 
environmentally (including climate 
change)?

P
age 9



  

Process Yes No Not 
applicable

Comments and date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report)

Outcome

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks 
and how these will be managed) 



Legal advice sought


Presented to any informal groups or 
committees (including partnership groups) 
for engagement or other formal 
governance groups for comments / 
approval? 
(Please specify in comments)



Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this 
work and ensure there is clarity in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and 
whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the work

P
age 10



July 2020

David Warhurst – Interim Chief Finance Officer

Integrated fund – Opening position (Children’s)

1

P
age 11



Contents:
Section 1 - Executive Overview

Section 2 - 2019/20 Final Position

Section 3 - Allocation and key assumptions

Section 4 - Expenditure and key assumptions

Section 5 - Summary of the pool opening position

Section 6 - Best value programme

Section 7 - Risk and issues

Section 8 - Next Steps

Questions

2

P
age 12



Executive overview
Section 1 – Summary for 2020/21

3

COVID 19  In year – There has been a number of decisions taken nationally that have significantly influenced 
expenditure relating to the integrated fund in 2020/21. One example is NHS England setting the value which 
localities must pay for a number of key contracts until July 2020. Further guidance is due out in July to outline the 
future month's decisions from NHS England.

2019/20 Financial Outturn – (Slide 4) - The financial outturn of the children's integrated fund for 19/20 was a 
£7.5m overspend, £6.5m of which related to looked after children. The appendices provide a detailed breakdown 
in relation to the 19/20 outturn.

2020/21 Opening budgets – Whilst the integrated fund overspent by £7.5m in 2019/20, in 2020/21 pre COVID-
19, there fund had a balanced position. This was predicated on savings and cost avoidance being delivered in 
relation to best value schemes.

Due to the COVID 19 pandemic, budget setting for future years has been put on hold; this recognises that COVID 
19 could have a material impact on national guidance.

The funding contributions into the Integrated Fund are a “level 1” decision reserved for the Cabinet and Governing 
Body of the Council and CCG respectively. 

The CCG have confirmed their funding contributions into the integrated fund budget for 2020/21 pre COVID 19, 
but allocations to integrated funds could change subject to a new financial regime for the NHS due in July.

Council figures are still currently draft within this plan as they haven’t been confirmed at present.

P
age 13



2019/20 Final Position
Section 2 – Summary

4

Key notes and assumptions

▪ (£0.4m) – Deterioration in the forecast based on the last reported forecast to the committee.  The deterioration is 
driven primarily by an increase in activity for children’s services, commissioned through Manchester University FT.

▪ (£7.5m) - The final overspend position on the Children’s integrated fund – this doesn’t include the final local authority 
position, which wasn’t available in time for the CCG’s year end accounts. Once a final position is known reconciliation 
will be completed to identify the differences in final positions. Key drivers of the overspend included:

▪ (£4.9m) – (Slide 13 ) -Overspend on out of areas placements – it should be noted that the position is worse case 
scenario and could reduce based on the reconciliation described above.

P
age 14



Allocation Pre COVID-19
Section 3 – Key assumptions

5

Salford CCG - Decrease in year -£o.3m (-0.8%)

▪ £1.6m - Added in line with the CCG’s 4.33% allocation increase for 2020/21 pre COVID 19. 

▪ (£1.9m) - Part of the CCG allocation increase of 4.33% has been transferred from Children’s to Adults’ to fund Acute 
pressures for 2020/21

The CCG also had planned funding for  the Children’s best value of c. £2.0m not included in the pool.

Salford City Council - Increase in year £5.8m (7.3%)

▪ £0.4m - The Council have include the additional grants it has received for 20/21 in relation to Social Care into the 
overall integrated fund.  Some of these grants were available in 2019/20 and have been continued for another year.

▪ (£2.2m) - The Council have taken  a contribution from the integrated fund to contribute to its overall savings target for 
2020/21.

▪ £7.7m - The Council have included additional grants received for 2020/21 in relation to Social Care.

* Recurrent grant position for the Council unknown and is therefore set at £0.5m reduction based on current grants in the pool being removed. 

*

P
age 15



Expenditure Pre COVID-19
Section 4 – Key assumptions

6

Key notes and assumptions

▪ Children’s Contingency (£5.0m) – Funding has been set for potential pressures within the children’s integrated 
fund that may arise through the year. This has been set in response to the 2019/20 position being overspent by 
£7.5m at the end of the year, but recognising that there should be an impact of the Children’s best value work.

P
age 16



Summary Pre COVID-19
Section 5 – Opening Adults fund 20/21

7

Key notes and assumptions

Contingency – There has been no change in the 
Council’s budget from 2019/20 to 2020/21. 
However there is a £5.0m contingency.

The 2019/20 pressure was £7.5m for children’s 
the best value program is expected to deliver 
saving through 2020/21 to help deliver the 
proposed balanced budget.

2019/20 2020/21 Change
£m £m £m

TOTAL FUNDING £117.5 £123.0 £5.5

Acute Services £26.4 £26.4 -£0.0

Looked After Children £22.8 £22.8 £0.0

Specific Grants £17.8 £17.8 £0.0

Community Services £9.1 £9.4 £0.2

Localities £8.9 £8.9 £0.0

Resources & Investment £6.7 £6.7 £0.0

PH 0-19 Services  £5.3 £5.3 £0.0

Complex Needs SEN £5.2 £5.2 £0.0

Partnerships £3.7 £3.7 £0.0

Transforming Learning £2.3 £2.3 £0.0

Skills & Work / Careers £1.5 £1.5 £0.0

Children's Administration £1.4 £1.4 £0.0

Helping Families £1.3 £1.3 £0.0

Early Years £1.2 £1.2 £0.0

Asset Management & Delivery £1.0 £1.0 £0.0

Placements/Non Contracted Activity £0.9 £0.8 -£0.1

Safeguarding £0.4 £0.4 £0.0

Youth Service £0.4 £0.4 £0.0

Home Safety £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

PH Looked After Children (next steps post) £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

TOTAL - Integrated Fund £116.2 £116.3 £0.1

Acute Services £1.3 £1.3 £0.0

TOTAL - Aligned £1.3 £1.3 £0.0

Committed Developments £0.0 £5.4 £5.4

TOTAL - Committed Developments £0.0 £5.4 £5.4

TOTAL EXPENDITURE £117.5 £123.0 £5.5

SAVINGS TARGET £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

P
age 17



Children’s Best Value
Section 6 – Update

8

Overview –Salford Council and CCG established the Best Value Programme to identify, develop and 
implement service change to deliver efficiencies across Salford health and care services. To support 
this programme £4m was set aside from the CCG’s allocation to support transformational change in 
Children’s Services.

The actual performance against target to the end of March 2020 is as follows:

Financial Impact – As a result of reducing the baseline cohort of placements and IFAs over the last 15 
months it is estimated the full-year impact is a reduction in “do nothing” costs of around £5.5m –
representing the impact of reduced placements and IFAs [c£6.4m], offset by the increase in costs of 
around £0.9m – primarily the Route 29 Hub. 

External Evaluation – Dartington has started an external evaluation of the programme, which will 
include a review of the impact of COVID and delivering some services virtually has had.

P
age 18



Risks and assumptions
Section 7 – Impact pre/post COVID

9

Savings Target – For 20/21 pre COVID-19 there isn’t a savings target for children’s, however this 
is predicated on there being no unplanned increases in costs and the children’s best value work 
continuing to deliver savings.

Block Contracts – 30% of the expenditure within the pool has been blocked purchased until the 
end of July 2020, with the price set nationally. This means this element won’t overspend, but 
creates a new risk that the CCG’s allocation could be reduced, which will need to be reviewed as 
guidance is made available.

Children’s Social Care – The key risk is the best value program doesn’t deliver the expected 
savings for the services. If this is the case then there is likely to be a financial pressure to the 
system despite setting a side £5m to cover overspends for 2020/21.

Investments – Under the current financial regime running to at least July 2020, the NHS is only 
able to make new investments in response to COVID 19 or that have been approved by NHS 
England/Improvement. 

P
age 19



Risks and assumptions
Section 8 – Next Steps

10

Finance Regime – Currently the CCG’s financial regime is in place up to the end of July 2020. The 
CCG is still awaiting national guidance on the future financial regime beyond July 202o, this is 
expected to be announced around mid-July 2020.

Performance – The CCG and Council finance colleagues are currently working through the best 
way to present performance under the current financial regimes of both organisations and the 
implications for the integrated fund. It is hoped this can be resolved for the August 2020 
committee meetings when the next finance report is due.

Strategies – The locality is reviewing strategies recognising the significant change as a result of 
the pandemic, the financial envelope will be integral to help prioritise work streams whilst 
maintaining financial balance.

P
age 20



11

Recommendation to the committee 
The committee is asked to note:

• The financial outturn of a £7.5m overspend in 2019/20.

• The pre COVID 19 opening financial position of the integrated fund.

• Risks associated with COVID 19 and the next steps, including the CCGs financial regime expected mid July 2020.

P
age 21



Questions

12

P
age 22



13

Appendices
.

P
age 23



14

Appendix 2019/20
Appendix 1 – Looked After Children

• This appendix shows all of the Looked after Children services that are managed directly by Salford City Council.

• The final position for 2019/20 shows no change in position from the last report to this committee.  There main 
area of over performance remains within outside placements (£4.9m). This area also links to fostering (£0.7m) 
and residential (£0.6m) which are also over performing but not at the same rate.

• A lot of the best value work has been forced in these areas in particular linking to the “Route 29” work 
undertaken in 2019/20.

Annual Budget Forecast Annual variance

Previous 

Reported 

Variance to CCC

Movement in 

Variance

£m £m £m £m £m

Fostering £7.7 £8.4 £0.7 £0.7 -£0.0

Outside Placements £4.1 £9.0 £4.9 £4.8 £0.1

Residential £3.2 £3.8 £0.6 £0.6 -£0.0

Independent Foster Agency £2.4 £2.1 -£0.3 -£0.3 £0.0

Next Steps - Care Leavers £2.3 £2.3 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

Looked After Children Team £1.6 £1.9 £0.3 £0.3 -£0.0

Family Placement £0.9 £0.8 -£0.0 -£0.0 £0.0

Adoption £0.5 £0.8 £0.4 £0.4 -£0.0

Total Looked After Children £22.8 £29.3 £6.5 £6.5 £0.0

2019/20 Monitoring

Description

P
age 24



15

Appendix 2019/20
Appendix 2 – Localities

• This appendix shows all of the Localities Services that are managed directly by Salford City Council.

• The final position is an overspend of £0.4m for 2019/20; this is in line with the last report to this committee.  These 
services overspent due to increased assessment and child protection costs which have been overspent most of the 
year.

Annual 

Budget
Forecast

Annual 

variance

Previous 

Reported 

Variance to 

CCC

Movement in 

Variance

£m £m £m £m £m

Child Protection & Planning £3.2 £3.7 £0.5 £0.5 £0.0

Referral Initial Assessment team £1.6 £1.9 £0.3 £0.3 £0.0

Children with Disability £1.1 £1.1 -£0.0 -£0.0 -£0.0

Outreach Service £1.1 £1.0 -£0.1 -£0.1 -£0.0

Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (The Bridge) £0.5 £0.4 -£0.2 -£0.2 -£0.0

Emergency Duty Team £0.4 £0.4 £0.0 -£0.0 £0.0

Protect Team (Complex Safeguarding Hub) £0.3 £0.4 £0.1 £0.1 -£0.0

Locality Team General £0.2 £0.2 -£0.0 -£0.0 -£0.0

Locality Team South £0.2 £0.1 -£0.1 -£0.1 £0.0

Locality Team West £0.2 £0.1 -£0.1 -£0.1 £0.0

Locality Team Central £0.2 £0.1 -£0.1 -£0.1 £0.0

Locality Team North £0.1 -£0.0 -£0.1 -£0.1 -£0.0

Parenting Team £0.1 £0.2 £0.1 £0.1 £0.0

Other Child Protection -£0.1 -£0.1 £0.1 £0.1 £0.0

Total Localities £8.9 £9.4 £0.4 £0.4 £0.0

2019/20 Monitoring

Description

P
age 25



16

Appendix 2019/20
Appendix 3 – Acute Services Pool

• This appendix relates to the children’s hospital activity and maternity services that are included within the pooled 
budget and that Salford people attend.  Salford Royal FT spend relates to children’s A&E activity (PANDA Unit) which 
is over half of the annual children’s.  The majority of Salford children’s hospital activity (outpatients, day cases and 
inpatients) is with Manchester Foundation Trust (MFT) on the central Manchester site. 

• These services have underspent by £0.1m on children’s services in 2019/20 which is a worsening in the position by 
£0.2m compared with the last report to this committee. This is a result of increased activity at the MFT site.

• The main area of underspend is at Manchester Foundation Trust (£0.5m).  The main reason is a change in case mix 
within the maternity pathway.  This means the activity is in line with plan but the costs relating to the activity are at a 
lower level than we originally planned for in 2019/20. 

Annual Budget Forecast Annual variance

Previous 

Reported 

Variance to CCC

Movement in 

Variance

£m £m £m £m £m

Manchester NHS FT £15.6 £15.1 -£0.5 -£0.7 £0.2

Salford Royal NHS FT £3.9 £3.9 £0.1 £0.1 -£0.0

Bolton Hospitals NHS FT £3.8 £3.9 £0.1 £0.1 £0.0

Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust £2.3 £2.4 £0.1 £0.1 -£0.0

Wrightington, Wigan and Leigh Hospitals NHS FT £0.1 £0.0 -£0.0 -£0.0 £0.0

Warrington & Halton FT (North Chesh Hosp) £0.6 £0.8 £0.2 £0.2 £0.0

Stockport NHS FT £0.1 £0.1 -£0.0 -£0.0 £0.0

Tameside NHS FT £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 -£0.0

Blackpool Teaching NHS FT £0.0 £0.0 -£0.0 -£0.0 £0.0

Lancashire Teaching NHS FT £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 -£0.0

Total Acute Services (Pool) £26.4 £26.3 -£0.1 -£0.3 £0.2

2019/20 Monitoring

Description

P
age 26



17

Appendix 2019/20
Appendix 4 – Acute Services Aligned

• This appendix relates to those hospital services that legally cannot be included in a pooled budget.  These services 
predominantly relate to surgical hospital activity.  These services are included in the Integrated Fund and 
therefore within the financial risk share agreement. 

• These services have underspent by £0.1m in 2019/20.  This is in line with the last report to this committee.

Annual Budget Forecast
Annual 

variance

Previous 

Reported 

Variance to 

CCC

Movement in 

Variance

£m £m £m £m £m

Manchester NHS FT £1.0 £1.0 -£0.0 -£0.0 £0.0

Bolton Hospitals NHS FT £0.2 £0.2 -£0.1 -£0.1 -£0.0

Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust £0.0 £0.0 -£0.0 -£0.0 -£0.0

Wrightington, Wigan and Leigh Hospitals NHS FT £0.0 £0.0 -£0.0 -£0.0 -£0.0

Warrington & Halton FT (North Chesh Hosp) £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

Stockport NHS FT £0.0 £0.0 -£0.0 -£0.0 -£0.0

Total Acute Services (Aligned) £1.3 £1.2 -£0.1 -£0.1 £0.0

2019/20 Monitoring

Description

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1-OPEN TO THE PUBLIC  ITEM NO.

REPORT OF
STRATEGIC DIRECTOR, PEOPLE

TO 
CHILDREN’S COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE

ON 
WEDNESDAY 8 JULY 2020

Children’s and Public Health Covid Recovery Plan June 2020 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 To take note of the current Childrens and Public Health position in relation to Covid 
risks and recovery planning 

 To support ongoing developments and approve the plan 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

This paper presents the latest update for the Covid 19 Recovery Plan and seeks to assure 
Lead Members of the scale of work underway to ensure children and families are safe and 
well in Salford  

KEY DECISION: No

1. Introduction
During these unprecedented times it has been necessary for Childrens and Public Health 
Services to make some immediate changes to the way in which services have been 
delivered. At the moment we are rightly focusing on our immediate response to the 
COVID-19 outbreak. But the uncertainty created, and sheer scale of the pandemic, means 
that a strategy for recovery also needs to be put in place as part of the response. 

Drawing on evidence from the impact of previous emergencies, we can consider recovery 
as a strategy that is pursued with both short-term and long-term goals. Whilst compelling, 
a goal of ‘getting back to normal’ for recovery is too simplistic, particularly given that the 
challenges we currently face are far larger than a typical emergency response. The 
intangible damage to health, economies and social structures are on a global scale which 
has been rarely accounted for in emergency preparedness plans.

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



2

Instead, what recovery aims to establish is ‘a new normal’ - a way of life that, in some 
ways, might resemble life before the crisis but that is also adapted to and conditioned by 
the crisis that has passed, building on lessons learned through the crisis.

Short-term recovery will look to restart basic services, livelihoods, governance and the re-
initiation of social lives, and it is important to consider the speed at which this should take 
place. In the longer term, recovery should seek to reconcile, improve and amend some of 
the shortcomings, mistakes and vulnerabilities that exacerbated the emergency’s effects 
in the first place. The distribution of infections and deaths during the COVID-19 pandemic, 
the lockdown and associated measures, and the longer-term socioeconomic impact are 
likely to reproduce and intensify a number of inequalities 
This plan sets out the recovery phase for 0-6 months and details the areas for action. 
A Recovery Planning group chaired by Jim Taylor, Chief Executive, Salford City Council 
is meeting weekly to receive assurance and this update will be presented there. 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Health & Wellbeing

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  Not at this stage

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   Medium 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not at this stage

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Not at this stage

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Not at this stage

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:   Not at this stage

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  Public Health

CONTACT OFFICER:   Debbie Blackburn 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  All Wards

Page 30



3

Salford COVID-19 Pandemic Recovery Coordinating Group

Chair: Jim Taylor, Chief Executive, Salford City Council 

Deputy Chair: Ben Dolan, Strategic Director, Salford City Council 

RECOVERY ACTION PLAN FOR PHASE 1 – RELEASE OF LOCKDOWN PHASE

Phases
Three broad stages of recovery from the COVID 19 pandemic have been identified: release of lockdown, living with COVID, and 
build back better. These stages are not anticipated to be distinct, blurring between timescales is anticipated, and multiple phases 
will be operational at the same time.

0-2 MONTHS 0-6 MONTHS 12 MONTHS 12 MONTHS +
1. RELEASE OF LOCKDOWN
2. Living with COVID
3. Build Back Better

Workstreams
The workstreams below have been developed from existing impact assessments for both Greater Manchester and Salford. The list 
is not exhaustive. Each workstream has an action plan set out below, focussing on the release of lockdown phase. Click the link 
to go to the relevant action plan. 

1. Children, young people, and families
2. Adult Health, wellbeing, & social care
3. Housing & homelessness
4. Communities and support (VCSE 
Sector)
5. Thriving & productive economy

6. Transport connectivity & infrastructure
7. Place making
8. Crime & disorder
9. Environment
10. Digital

11. Public sector finance
12. Communications
13. Legal 
14. Workforce
15. Response debrief & evaluation

P
age 31



4

Cross Cutting themes 
The following cross cutting themes for the action plan have also been identified
 Inequalities / poverty
 Safe Standards
 Co-design, civil society and social infrastructure 
 Building a confident Salford
 Impact on Environment (carbon reduction)
 Resilient city-region
 Recovery in the context of the ‘Great Eight’ and the GMS 
 Behaviour change
 Public service reform

P
age 32



5

Workstream 1: Children, young people, and families 

Senior Responsible 
Officer

Charlotte Ramsden, Strategic Director 
(People Directorate)

Portfolio 
lead:

Cllr John Merry, Deputy City Mayor and Lead 
Member for Children’s and Young People’s 
Services

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

AREA FOR ACTION: EARLY YEARS
National guidance has 
reduced the numbers of 
children seen by the 0-
19 service therefore the 
number of 
developmental checks 
will mean school 
readiness will be 
affected 

Assess impact of delays 
in the 0-19 service and 
seek assurance about a 
recovery plan 

Ensure recovery plan for 
missed children 
established and 
additional capacity made 
available to meet needs.

Link the 0-19 Health 
Service recovery plan 
with the Early Help 
recovery plan. 

By 8th June 

By 25th June 

Debbie Blackburn 

Becky Bibby 

Safety meeting 
scheduled with SRFT 
for Wednesday 
27/5/20

Recovery Plan 
requested via Director 
of Operations at 
SRFT by 25th June 
2020

Regular overview 
meetings established 
on a weekly basis to 
plan recovery and 
assess impact 

P
age 33



6

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

Children will not have 
had the usual 
preparation for 
transitions– see 
schools’ section below 

 Cathy Starbuck  

Babies not registered Assess the numbers of 
babies born using the 
NN4B and triangulate 
with registrar’s data once 
fully reopened.

Provide support to cross 
check with NN4B in the 
Child Health Information 
system at SRFT and in 
Maternity Units Covid 
Antenatal pathway and 
interventions developed 
and being delivered by 
the Early Help Service.

By 30th June 2020 Debbie Blackburn

Becky Bibby 

Discussion with 
Registrar's office and 
City Solicitor to 
ascertain recovery 
plans and support 
which can be offered 
from the sector 

Antenatal Pathway is 
live and shared 
across the 
partnership.

Sufficiency of early 
years places if settings 
close

Support for settings to re-
open linked to the release 
of the EY toolkit about 
safety measures.

Becky Bibby Total number of Early 
Years settings that 
are now open are 71 
and 36 remain closed. 

P
age 34



7

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

Total number of 
childminders open is 
97 and 94 remain 
closed.

Children not being seen 
by Professionals 

Lack of Universal 
contact e.g. schools 
and early years 
services, midwifery 
primary care

Using the RAG rating 
system each service who 
would usually have 
contact with the child 
reviews the children for 
whom there is concern 
and agree a process for 
review via the 
triangulation meeting and 
Assure application 

Cathy Starbuck App has been tested 
in Quality assurance 
environment and will 
go live imminently.  
Triangulation 
meetings are in place. 
Training underway for 
staff to ensure can 
input data to the app

Uptake of early years 
funded places

Agree an approach to 
promotion of early years 
places and undertake a 
data exercise to map 
where children have not 
taken up the place 

Agree a targeted 
approach to those 
families via the Early 
Help Service, 0-19 Health 
Service and the Starting 
Life Well Service.

Becky Bibby Mapping in progress

Impact of Parents 

P
age 35



8

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

electing to keep 
children in PVIs rather 
than schools nursery 
places impact on 
funding for schools 
places

Deterioration of Mental 
health and physical 
health less early 
identification of physical 
health needs

As services begin to 
mobilise offer parents an 
advice line to support 

Debbie Blackburn

Michelle Whittaker

Eejay Whitehead

Stephen Woods 

Recovery plans in 
development with 
community health 
services. Letter 
drafted for SRFT 
around needs and 
priorities from a 
commissioning 
perspective.

Copy of Childrens 
reinvigoration plan V1.xlsx

Childrens Educational 
attainment and school 
readiness

EY delivery model being 
converted as far as 
possible into an online 
process to allow limited 
assessments of progress 
and appropriate advice 
about use of targeted 
support

Becky Bibby As above

This will be linked to 
the 0-19 Health 
Service recovery plan.

Disruption of 
immunisation uptake

Plans to reinstate 
immunisation being 
developed with health 

Debbie Blackburn

P
age 36



9

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

visiting services
Connectivity and family 
support through the 
early help system 

Online resources being 
developed. 

Targeted support being 
offered to identified 
families to compliment 
the virtual offer. 

Some essential face to 
face visits also being 
provided. 

Becky Bibby Family Partnership 
Model being used to 
understand family 
need.

Early Help 
interventions 
converted to an online 
system. 

Covid uncertainty 
making it difficult to do 
long term planning 
Unknown impact of 
Covid 19

Focus on a flexible offer 
that achieves the 
outcomes set for CYP 
within a model that can 
be delivered face to face 
or virtually depending on 
Covid risk assessment

Becky Bibby In place but being 
updated constantly

Sustainability of staff 
resilience Inter-
dependability with staff 
in health services

Emotional support 
system in place via 
council services, 
management support in 
place and risk 
assessments being 
completed for individual 
needs

Issue of staff having to 
self-isolate due to contact 

System in place but 
being modified based 
on staff need

P
age 37



10

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

tracing 
Neuro developmental 
pathway was in 
progress but due to 
Covid needs to be 
reconsidered 

AREA FOR ACTION: SCHOOLS, COLLEGES & EDUCATION
Children who have not 
been in school, 
adjustment back and 
attendance and 
transitioning back into a 
routine in school and 
enforcement/working 
with parents around 
attendance

Primary schools gradually 
reopening in accordance 
with government priorities 
and local Covid and 
school risk assessments

From 1st June Cathy Starbuck 33 schools extended 
their number of pupils 
on 1st June, more next 
week

High schools form 15th 
June for small 
numbers of year 10 
and college for Year 
12s

Children will not have 
had the usual 
preparation for 
transitions into schools 
from Early Years and 
from Year 6 and Year 
11

Virtual transition process 
to be facilitated for Year 6 
pupils using primary 
schools’ facilities.

Alternative transition 
processes to be 
implemented by schools 
and colleges to ensure 
children and young 
people experience a well-

By July 20

In September 20 
(assuming cohorts can 
commence school and 
college the school site 
at his point)

Cathy Starbuck Transition Guidance 
developed to support 
transition during 
Covid. Secondaries 
have produced virtual 
tour videos

Year 11 pupils being 
supported by welfare 
checks from schools 
and connexions. 
Salford city college 
has produced high 

P
age 38



11

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

managed induction quality pre enrolment 
learning materials on 
their website

 Salford City College 
are designing virtual 
tours and ‘meet the 
teacher’ documents 
for new students 
(including SEND)

LA are compiling 
weekly resources 
document which 
highlights the wider 
transition activities Yr 
11s can do remotely 
to support them now 
and over summer.

LA and 
partners/employers 
are designing 
vocational ‘keep 
warm’ summer 
activities to provide to 
risk of NEET young 
people.

LA will be sharing Yr 

P
age 39



12

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

11 risk of NEET 
indicators to Salford 
City College before 
summer to ensure 
appropriate support is 
in place for the most 
vulnerable in 
September

Schools and 
Connexions will 
support college 
enrolment with 
specific staff linked to 
specific college 
centres

Salford City College are 
producing regular ‘keep 
in touch’ materials over 
summer.  With specific 
support for those with 
emotional health 
concerns.

Digital Poverty has 
been identified for over 
2000 children in Salford 
impacting on ability to 
learn online, issues 
about data allowances, 

DfE offer of laptops 
allocated linked to 
analysis of need by 
schools and social 
workers 

By end of June 20 Cathy Starbuck DfE laptops due this 
week and plans in 
place for roll out via 
schools with IT 
support from the 

P
age 40



13

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

no Wi-Fi and no 
equipment (laptops) 
increasing isolation for 
those with no digital 
access.

GM offer of digital kit 
being used to supplement 
the offer from DfE

Support to service users 
through Digital Eagles

Negotiations taking place 
about Wi-Fi roll out

YP being invited into 
school for one to one 
support and supply of 
paper-based work

Support for young people 
to utilise laptops via 
social workers/mentors 
form the University being 
explore 

council

Allocation of kit 
agreed – finalising 
arrangement with 
legal

YP support via 
schools in place but 
being further 
developed 

Prolonged period of 
education disruption 
Also impacts of lack of 
social interaction & 
physical activity

Schools analysing impact 
of lost education and 
planning appropriate 
work

Loss of social interaction 
and physical activity 

Ongoing as children 
return to school

Cathy Starbuck Already in place 
linked to work set 
since lockdown and 
what has been 
returned. Will be 
further refined during 
this half term

P
age 41



14

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

Impact of education 
inequality across the life 
course, early 
identification of 
development needs

Sharing best practice 
across schools regarding 
online learning.

Consider summer 
schools to support 
learning (need to clarify if 
DFE will fund this) 

Opportunities for physical 
activities during summer 

By end of June 20

By mid-June 

Cathy Starbuck

Cathy Starbuck

Survey developed but 
not yet sent out due to 
demands on schools

Opinion from schools 
is that there would be 
willing staff if funding 
was available 

Childrens Mental health 
needs as a result of the 
lockdown

Full emotional and mental 
health support plan in 
place

Debbie Blackburn Completed but being 
regularly updated as 
more face to face 
support can be 
offered. Additional 
online support 
available, Educational 
Psychologists have 
supported the 
emotionally friendly 
settings work in 
schools to help 
recovery including 
guidance on 
bereavement and 

P
age 42



15

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

loss. Community and 
CAMHS mental health 
support in place. 

 DA work and trauma 
-based work Mental 
Health IDVA 
additional support 
Womens Aid

Fear of Covid from 
young people and 
parents impacting on 
willingness to engage 
with the mainstream 
system including 
education and health 
services 

School communication 
with parents to plan for 
safe return to school

Ongoing Cathy Starbuck Survey conducted 
with parents currently 
being analysed

In place and 
continuing

increase in elective 
home education

Requests being 
monitored but current 
situation being treated as 
Covid specific and 
absence from school for 
the groups who are now 
able to gradually return 
will not be logged as a 
home education 
application at this stage

Aim to minimise the 
number of new 
requests for home 
education and 
continue to support 
parents in their desire 
to provide their 
children’s education at 
home via their schools 
for this half term

Standard letters 
provided to schools to 

P
age 43



16

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

enable appropriate 
comms to support 
parents considering 
EHE 

Routine for children has 
been disrupted for 
children with 
vulnerabilities around 
socialising

Develop a guide for all 
schools, parents and 
settings to aid 

In development 
supported by 
Educational 
Psychology team 
Potential increase in 
MAP/CETR activity as 
a result if the COVID 
19 impact – ability to 
convene virtual 
meetings etc.

Support for children and 
their families with SEND

System for Personal 
budgets in place for EHC 
pupils 

Agreed process for 
EHC pupils and 
around 30 personal 
budgets have been 
processed so far. 
Offer now going more 
widely to parents and 
to mainstream 
schools 

Health staff using PPE 
in schools

AREA FOR ACTION: UNEMPLOYMENT (YOUNG PEOPLE)
Career opportunities 
longer term for families 

Mapping of those who 
have lost jobs and 

Cathy Starbuck LA, alongside Build 
Salford Employer 

P
age 44



17

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

and children apprenticeships in our 
vulnerable groups to offer 
bespoke support

Harnessing of new 
support offers

Online support for 
individuals

Summer ‘Comms’ 
campaign to be developed 
alongside GM campaign 
with key messages: ‘Getting 
ready’, ‘Getting started’, 
‘Need more help

Consortium, have 
developed an 
‘Apprenticeship 
Redundancy Fund’ 
which will provide 
wage incentives for up 
to 3 months for any 
redundant apprentices 
and their new 
employer,

LA are working with 
strategic partners and 
employers to broker 
new opportunities as 
part of the fund.

Temporarily extended 
the Connexions age 
group from up to 18 to 
24. Including a 
relaunched helpline to 
provide IAG to YP and 
their families.

Utilising GM support 
services including 
ESF NEET contract 
and Princes Trust 
Future Work Force 

P
age 45



18

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

Fund.

LA are working with 
strategic partners and 
employers to broker 
new opportunities as 
part of the fund.

Temporarily extended 
the Connexions age 
group from up to 18 to 
24. Including a 
relaunched helpline to 
provide IAG to YP and 
their families.

Utilising GM support 
services including 
ESF NEET contract 
and Princes Trust 
Future Work Force 
Fund.

Availability of work 
placements

Work is underway to 
review sectors which will 

Cathy Starbuck Being looked at as part 
of wider discussions 

P
age 46



19

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

require ongoing resource 
including health and 
social care 

Comms plan to be 
developed as part of a 
‘call to arms/pledge’ to 
employers to provide 
placements and other 
opportunities.  This is 
dependant on social 
distancing measures in 
the workplace.

Likely to be less compulsory 
time spent on placements 
as part of traineeship of 
provision but need to find 
ways to provide virtual 
employer interactions

with strategic partners

Salford Futures 
programme (work 
placements and 
traineeships) being 
reviewed and options 
being developed.

Employment for families Work is underway to 
review sectors which will 
require ongoing resource 
including health and 
social care

Review and re-shape  
existing employment and 

0-6mth Cathy Starbuck City Council and GM 
GM commissioned 
employment and skills 
services are being 
delivered remotely and 
recovery plans are 
being developed / 
reviewed.  

P
age 47



20

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

skills offer and explore 
opportunities to respond  to 
gaps in provision.  Adult Employment 

and Skills Helpline  
and offer being 
developed as part of 
next phase of Spirit of 
Salford work. 

Proposals being 
developed to respond 
to new Adult 
Education Budget 
(AEB) LA grant 
programme.    

links being made with 
GM regarding the 
development of an 
Intermediate Labour 
Market Model (ILM) 

Unemployment 
‘dashboard’ being 
developed linked to  
wider Economic 
Impact Analysis work.

P
age 48



21

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

Locality Plan priority to 
mitigate child poverty

Co-production with local 
communities (Child 
Poverty Truth 
Commission)

Maintain and increase 
focus on social value and 
wellbeing economics – 
work with VCSE sector 
and public sector 
employers on 10% Better 
in Salford.

0-12mths Muna Abdel Aziz/Janice 
Lowndes

Holiday hunger – 
Healthy holidays 
programme – 
extended virtual 
programme proposed 
for this year and FSM 
vouchers

Deterioration of Mental 
health and physical 
health less early 
identification of physical 
health needs

importance of the 
message out to the 
system that health is 
open for business – 
started to see an 
increase in GP appts 
and PANDA numbers 
improving – key 
communications aspect 

As above Debbie Blackburn 

Michelle Whittaker

Meeting planned for 
Friday 19th June to 
start to plan work to 
understand physical 
needs 

Links to GM excess 
morbidity Childrens 
meeting 

P
age 49



22

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

to this

AREA FOR ACTION: SAFEGUARDING
Relationships with 
professionals could be 
weakened Connectivity 
and family support

Undertake parental 
engagement exercise to 
understand barriers and 
enablers to engagement 
Significant focus upon 
relational practice and 
staff to be reminded of 
the importance of key 
relationships for children, 
review of outreach 
underway to ensure 
services are in the right 
places to respond to an 
increase in demand.

Zoe Fearon/Becky 
Bibby

Focus upon family 
meetings already 
underway to support 
he identification of 
resilience within 
families due to the 
isolation period and a 
lack of contact. Family 
partnership model 
implementation 
underway to look at 
how this will begin 
with social workers.

Referrals into the 
Bridge had initially 
reduced although some 
weeks there are 
significant increases, 
there is significant 
fluctuation.

Face to face visits 
continue where 
necessary and following 
risk assessment 

Meetings are taking place 
locally with Police 
colleagues to review 
referrals on a fortnightly 
basis to explore quality. 
Additional reports being 
produced on a weekly 
basis to analyse and 
monitor the level of 
referrals coming into the 
Bridge.

Zoe Fearon Meetings already 
established, weekly 
report detailing Bridge 
analysis already being 
shared weekly with 
partners.

Comms continue to 
go out to raise 
awareness of signs 
and symptoms of 

P
age 50



23

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

guidance. Activity is being 
monitored and Salford 
are collating data in
relation to demand

Risk assessments are 
taking place locally to 
ensure where
possible face to face 
visits are still taking place 
with young
People.

Information regarding 
emerging issues is being 
shared across the 10 
areas through the GM 
Complex Safeguarding 
Steering
group and GM 
Exploitation operational 
group (GM).

A Complex Safeguarding 
Comms Campaign was 
launched to increase 
public awareness of 
Exploitation and provide 
details of how to access 
support (GM).

abuse and what to do. 

Risk assessments 
continue to be 
undertaken when face 
to face visits are 
deemed necessary.

Any trends and 
themes will continue 

P
age 51



24

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

Online resources have 
been distributed to all the 
teams to share with 
young people and 
parents.

An exploitation 
awareness home 
resource pack is being
developed with GW 
Theatre for all 10 areas to 
access (GM).

The Trusted Relationship 
Psychologists are 
providing training and 
guidance to the CS 
teams on bereavement 
so they can support 
young people.

 

Salford to review and 
prioritise resources in line 
with any increased 
demand.

CS Hub providing support 

to feed into daily 
meetings and 
responses.

Communications 
continue and when 
lock down has eased 
and risk is reduced 
road shows will 
commence in schools 
as planned prior to 
Covid-19.

Awareness shared 
with partners.

P
age 52



25

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

with case audits and 
learning reviews to 
ensure consistency of 
practice during COVID.

To be shared when 
completed.

This is happening to 
support children and 
young people with 
issues they may 
experience, the 
trusted relationship 
psychologist is 
embedded in the team 
in Salford CSH.

Ongoing support 
being offered from a 
strategic level and 
joined up service 
delivery between R29, 
YJS and CSH.

Outcome framework 
is being developed on 
a local level to ensure 
we can evidence the 
impact upon 
outcomes for young 
people.

P
age 53



26

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

Concerns that as some 
young people are
predominantly being 
engaged online they 
may be able to mask 
any problems/issues 
that they could be 
facing

Social workers are having 
discussions with children 
and young people and 
have been increasing 
awareness with parents. 

Zoe Fearon Multi-agency 
professionals are 
aware of the 
increased risk and are 
addressing where 
appropriate.

Concerns that some 
voluntary sector 
providers are unable to 
provide the same level 
of support to the teams 
and young people as 
they move to online 
provision

Multi-agency meetings 
must address and 
discuss the most 
appropriate person to 
offer support

Zoe Fearon CIN reviews and CP 
reviews are 
addressing current 
support plans and will 
identify gaps in 
services which will be 
addressed as 
appropriate.

Assess the support to 
help the sector 
address this

Concern there may be a 
surge in referrals when 
schools and other 
providers reopen but 
capacity will not have 
increased to respond

Ensure capacity to 
respond is evident within 
the service

Zoe Fearon There has been an 
ongoing focus upon 
open cases to ensure 
cases step 
down/close/transfer 
where necessary, this 
will enable capacity w 
within the service 
should there be 
increased demand. A 

P
age 54



27

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

review of outreach 
has been undertaken 
to ensure the right 
services are poised 
and ready in the right 
place.

Concerns about young 
people not attending
school and their 
increased vulnerability 
to exploitation by 
criminal gangs etc. 

Social workers to 
encourage vulnerable 
children to attend school 
where appropriate

Zoe Fearon Social Workers are re-
visiting risk 
assessments and 
talking with parents to 
encourage vulnerable 
children to start to 
return to school where 
appropriate and 
necessary in order to 
safeguard the child.

CYP who have 
experienced a 
bereavement due
to COVID may be at 
increased risk of 
exploitation due to their 
vulnerability & isolation

Additional support is 
required to offer support 
to bereaved children and 
their families

Services are in place 
for any bereavement 
support and social 
workers are aware of 
these services, multi-
agency plans are in 
place and will be 
reviewed in light of 
any significant 
changes.

There are reports CYP 
who have experienced
bereavement due to 
COVID are breaching

Detached youth services 
need to be in place to 
support young people 

Becky Bibby/Zoe 
Fearon

Detached Youth 
services are 
responding to 
incidents of youth 

P
age 55



28

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

COVID restrictions to 
meet peers for support
potential criminalisation

gatherings in order to 
engage positively.

YS recovery plan in 
place with a focus on 
detached youth work. 

Concerns about young 
people’s emotional 
wellbeing, experiencing 
increased anxiety due 
to COVID

Additional mental health 
support to be in place

Debbie Blackburn 

Children on plans have 
not been seen face to 
face as often as usual

Risk assessment to be in 
place for each child who 
has a social worker

Zoe Fearon Every child should 
now have a Covid-19 
risk assessment that 
determines how often 
they should be seen, 
these are signed off 
by a manager, data is 
produced weekly to 
inform managers of 
potential issues to 
address.

Tensions within 
household may rise due 
to children being at 
home for extended 
periods

Regular contact must be 
maintained with parents 
to identify issues as early 
as possible; professionals 
must report any concerns

Zoe Fearon Additional pathways 
within the Bridge have 
been devised to 
support agencies 
raising concerns and 
response 
strengthened with 
youth service and 

P
age 56



29

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

Early Help.

Tri-angulation meeting 
are in place to explore 
plans for the most at 
risk children quickly 
and efficiently.

Links with adult 
service supporting 
adults with additional 
vulnerabilities who are 
parents e.g. MH / 
substance misuse / 
DA / LD

AREA FOR ACTION: LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN AND CARE LEAVERS
Levels of sufficiency 
appears to be holding 
well however some 
issues across Salford in 
securing foster 
placements for 
teenagers whose 
families have 
experienced crisis 
breakdowns.

Creative ways to support 
youths have been 
explored and continue to 
be explored.

Zoe Fearon The use of R29 has 
been extremely 
supportive in 
preventing admissions 
into care, additional 
support continues to 
be offered and 
alternative solutions, 
including the use of 
Lledr Hall is in place.

Some concerns around 
the stability of the 

Each child’s plan needs 
to be reviewed and risk 

Zoe Fearon The care planning 
process is currently 

P
age 57



30

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

Residential provision in 
Salford

assessments completed being revised; the 
Edge of care offer is 
now strengthened to 
prevent crisis 
admissions to care 
where possible.

Appropriate support for 
foster carers

Ensuring foster 
placements remains 
supported and stable 
during this time

Zoe Fearon Additional payments 
have been agreed for 
foster carers to 
ensure they are 
supported during this 
period, support is 
offered virtually by 
supervising social 
workers and risk 
assessments have 
been completed 
around each LAC 
child addressing 
visiting frequency, 
support, school 
attendance and 
contact.

Concerns around 
isolation and mental 
health and access to 
support care leavers 
during Covid-19 crisis

As above 

Work with specific 
commissioned services 

Pure Insights and 

Debbie Blackburn 

P
age 58



31

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

STARLAC team 

Link to Risky Behaviours 
work 

Nicky Herne

Financial and 
accommodation 
security for care
leavers during crisis

LAs have provided details 
of their support offer to 
care leavers
during the Covid-19 crisis 
includes risk assessment 
for individual young 
people, use of digital 
technology where 
appropriate, proving food 
package and arranging 
payments
where required

There is a risk moving 
forward that recruitment 
to fostering could slow 
down, areas using the
internal recruitment 
approach to support 
with this.

Foster carer strategy to 
be reviewed and revised

Zoe Fearon This was scheduled to 
take place prior to 
COVD-19 and will be 
revisited when priority 
actions elsewhere 
have been completed 
around keeping 
children safe. Ideally a 
SQUAD approach will 
begin in September 
2020

AREA FOR ACTION: SUPPORTING POSITIVE MENTAL HEALTH
Promoting online digital 
support 

Increasing use of digital and 
remote working to maintain 

Debbie Blackburn CCG VCSE sector 
funding available to 

P
age 59



32

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

service provision in the 
current context. This raises 
common issues for all 
services -including 
Children’s Social Care –
around consent, 
confidentiality/privacy, 
limitations to remote 
working, and choice for 
service users.

Support to service users 
through Digital Eagles.

support community 
groups to facilitate 
digital solutions

Children Bear Brunt of
Increasing Violence at
Home under Lockdown

Work with our existing 
providers to ascertain via 
Operation encompass 
scale of issue and seek 
solutions to reduce the 
impact 

Zoe Fearon/Debbie 
Blackburn 

Operation encompass 
has now been 
introduced in Early 
years settings, 
ongoing work with 
notifications via 
schools

Additional funding to 
support the refuges 
and the DA 
perpetrator 
programme agreed

Lockdown Produces
Increasing Levels of
Loneliness

Identify vulnerable 
cohorts via triangulation 
and create networks of 
peer and professional 

Debbie Blackburn Work to support an 
online open space 
conference is 
underway 

P
age 60



33

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

support 
Suicidal Thoughts
Show Concerning
Upward Trend

Identify vulnerable 
cohorts via triangulation 
and create networks of 
peer and professional 
support

Debbie Blackburn 

AREA FOR ACTION: RESPONDING TO PHYSICAL HEALTH NEED & TACKLING HEALTH INEQUALITIES
Deterioration of Mental 
health and physical 
health less early 
identification of physical 
health needs which may 
include developmental 
physical delay, obesity, 
failure to 
thrive/malnutrition, 
motor impairments 

Develop an approach to 
assessment of potential 
physical impacts of 
lockdown 
Develop a programme for 
assessment and notification 
via the triangulation 
meetings where 
professionals have 
concerns

Debbie Blackburn 

Michelle Whittaker

The welfare check 
process is in use in all 
settings, need to adopt 
questions which will 
determine physical 
needs

Provision of health 
services have been 
disrupted 

Routine appointments 
undertaken via telephone or 
video consultation. 
Development of advice line. 
All new and review 
appointments undertaken 
via telephone or video 
consultation. Facility for 
face to face appointments if 
urgent remains, most of 
these are for safeguarding 
assessments. MDT 
meetings undertaken 

Debbie Blackburn An updated plan for all 
community health 
services has been 
shared as above 

A meeting is taking 
place on 19/06/20 

P
age 61



34

Issue
(indicate if risk, opportunity, or 

threat)

Action Timescale Lead officer Progress

virtually using Teams
HPV vaccine catch up 
and prevention of 
unplanned teenage 
pregnancy

Salford sexual health 
service / HPV vaccination

Ensure YP have access 
to preferred contraceptive 
method.

Within the next 6 
months

Gillian 
McLauchlan/Helen 
Dugdale

Detail to be discussed

Attendance of children 
and young people with 
EHCPs in mainstream 
and specialist provision is 
low and this has been 
parental choice

Identify vulnerability via 
schools’ welfare checks and 
prioritise return to school 
with additional support for 
parents

Cathy Starbuck 

Economic Impacts of 
furlough and 
redundancies, future 
earning potential of 
parents will impact on 
children's wellbeing and 
life chances 

Work with welfare rights 
and debt advice to create 
an opportunity for 
children’s services to 
refer in for support prior 
to crisis point 

Cathy Starbuck Discussions have 
commenced about 
early referrals with 
Catherine Connors 
but would need to 
come via the Assure 
App, once this has 
been tested it will be 
progressed.

P
age 62



35

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Please indicate time required to present the paper: 10 mins

Children’s Commissioning Committee

Part 1

Agenda item number: 7

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information

08 July 2020

Report of: Charlotte Ramsden/Karen Proctor

Date of paper: 02 July 2020

Subject: Annual Business Plan 

In case of query please contact: Karen Proctor

Strategic priorities (please mark with an X which priorities the paper 
relates to)

Priority Selection

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research: 

Integrated Community Care Services (Adult 
Services):

X

Children’s and Maternity Services: X

Primary Care: 

Enabling Transformation: X

Purpose of paper: To present the children’s CCG and Council 
commissioning workplans for 2020/21. 

Page 65

Agenda Item 7



Further explanatory information required

Question Answer

How will this benefit the health 
and wellbeing of Salford 
residents or the Clinical 
Commissioning Group?

Continuous improvement of patient/resident 
services 

What risks may arise as a result 
of this paper? How can they be 
mitigated?

Raised expectations about what is feasible 
during this period of a Pandemic

What equality-related risks may 
arise as a result of this paper?  
How will these be mitigated?

Considered at an individual workstream 
level

Does this paper help address any 
existing high risks facing the 
organisation? If so what are they 
and how does this paper reduce 
them?

No specific, single risk

Please describe any possible 
conflicts of interest associated 
with this paper.

N/A

Please identify any current 
services or roles that may be 
affected by issues within this 
paper.

N/A

Footnote:

Members of the Children’s Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly. Once 
papers are distributed no amendments are possible.

Page 66



  

3

Document development

Process Yes No Not 
applicable

Comments and date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report)

Outcome

Public engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation)

X

Clinical engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation)

X Developed with the clinical 
workstream leads

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social 
Value and the impacts on the residents of 
Salford socially, economically and 
environmentally (including climate 
change)?

X To be considered for individual 
projects

P
age 67



  

4

Process Yes No Not 
applicable

Comments and date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report)

Outcome

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks 
and how these will be managed) 

X To be considered for individual 
projects

Legal advice sought
X

Presented to any informal groups or 
committees (including partnership groups) 
for engagement or other formal 
governance groups for comments / 
approval? 
(Please specify in comments)

X

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work 
and ensure there is clarity in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether 
amendments were requested about a particular part of the work

P
age 68



  

5

Children’s Commissioning Committee Annual 
Business Plan 

1. Executive summary
The main aim of this paper is to present to the committee the current commissioning work 
plan for 2020/21 for children’s services (Appendix 2). The background to our planning for the 
year is summarised, along with the impact and context of COVID-19 response and recovery.

There are a number of limitations and caveats to the plan, which are outlined.

Delivery against these plans will be reported to the committee throughout the year.

The Children’s Commissioning Committee is asked to:

 Agree the Children’s Commissioning Work Plan (Appendix 2), noting that it is subject 
to iterations for the reasons outlined, and

2. Background
2.1 For the past several years, the CCG and Council have developed joint commissioning 

business plans. For the CCG, this is heavily influenced by national NHS planning 
guidance and process. The background to this is summarised below.

2.2 NHS England Chief Executive, Simon Stevens, launched the NHS Long Term Plan 
(LTP) on 7th January 2019.  Salford is in a very strong position against most of the 
themes outlined within the LTP; with a strong history of investment in mental health 
services and in primary care services; a drive to move services from acute to 
community settings and with a clear focus on early identification in everything from 
cancer diagnosis to childhood development difficulties. 

2.3 In addition to the Long Term Plan, NHS England published its Operational Planning 
and Contracting Guidance 2020/21 on 3rd June 2019 and further detailed guidance 
on 30th January 2020. In summary, the guidance covered the delivery task for both 
NHS providers and commissioners, covering system planning, finances, operational 
performance and workforce. Local systems were required to develop system-wide 
strategic plans to implement the NHS Long Term Plan. Greater Manchester’s system-

Page 69



  

6

level planning, as well as Salford’s submissions through the autumn and winter were 
made in line with these requirements.

2.4 The GM Health & Care Partnership was working to finalise its 5 year Delivery Plan for 
2020-24 spanning three main sections (Our Population’s Health, Building a 
Sustainable System and Unlocking Our Economic Potential).  COVID-19 means that 
work on this has been paused. 

2.5 In line with national and GM planning requirements, Salford refreshed its Locality Plan 
in 2019/20.  The locality plan is the ‘blueprint’ for well-being, health and social care in 
Salford; it is a public health led, system plan. Launched in April 2016, it explains how 
providers of public services - like the NHS, Salford City Council, Fire Service and 
Police - will work closely together with the private and voluntary sector so services 
work better and cost less.  A draft of the refreshed Locality Plan was shared with the 
Health and Wellbeing Board in February 2020, however sign off was not completed 
due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  The draft document will need to be reviewed again 
in light of COVID-19, which we hope to commence in the next few weeks.

3. Salford 2020/21 Joint Business Planning

3.1 Each year, as part of the annual planning process, the Salford health and social care 
system comes together to consider the overarching aims in the Locality Plan and how 
they can best be delivered.  This year, the planning process began in September 2019 
and, as in previous years the Council and CCG were working to develop a strong 
prioritised annual plan for 2020/21 aligned to the refreshed Salford Locality Plan, 
incorporating new national planning requirements and GM priorities and ensuring 
agreed activities are appropriately costed and resourced.

3.2 The 2020/21 annual plan for health and social care was jointly drafted across the CCG 
and Salford City Council, led by the Joint Head of Planning and Performance. Planning 
updates were provided to the Health and Care Commissioning Board and Joint 
Committees throughout the planning process.  

3.3 For 2020/21, annual planning was split under 6 strategic workstreams and continued 
to build on the joint planning arrangements already in place across children’s health 
and social care, population health, adults’ health and social care and primary care.  
Working closely with the Integrated Commissioning Joint Leadership Team, we agreed 
a joint approach to planning for 2020/21 which included facilitated workshops across 
the following themes:

 Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research,

Page 70



  

7

 Primary Care, 
 Joint Children’s and Maternity Services, 
 Joint Adult Services (including Learning Disabilities and Autism), 
 All age Mental Health Services, and
 Enablers (CCG Only).

3.4 The planning workshops were scheduled throughout January – March 2020, and all 
but the Quality and Enablers workshops took place with colleagues across health and 
social care prior to our attention being diverted to the COVID-19 response.  

3.5 As in previous years, we were well on our way to developing a strong prioritised 
business plan for 2020/21 aligned to the draft refreshed Salford Locality Plan and the 
new NHS Long Term Plan, incorporating new national planning requirements and GM 
transformation priorities.  Appendix 1 shows the draft strategic aims for each of the 
workstream areas.

3.6 Approval of annual plans including the operational plan was due to be conducted 
through the existing joint committees and governance of Salford CCG and Salford City 
Council in March to May 2020.  

3.7 In March 2020, in light of COVID-19 it was recommended nationally that the NHS defer 
publication of any plans until the autumn.  As such, the planning timescales we were 
working to ceased and staff were redeployed to respond to the COVID-19 crisis.  

4. COVID-19 Recovery

4.1 As committee members will appreciate, both the City Council and CCG have been 
focused on the COVID-19 response over recent weeks, as summarised in recent 
reports to Council and Governing Body:

Salford City Council (pgs 347-380): 
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/g2676/Public%20reports%20pack%
20Wednesday%2017-Jun-2020%2009.30%20Council.pdf?T=10

NHS Salford CCG (pgs 10-63):
https://extranet.salfordccg.nhs.uk/application/files/8815/9256/8600/Combined_Paper
s_-_Governing_Body_-_24.6.20.pdf

4.2 As we move from the initial response phase of COVID-19, we begin to consider how 
the health and care system provides the best care and treatment possible during a 
“living with COVID-19” phase as well as the longer term system “recovery”.  The 

Page 71

https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/g2676/Public%20reports%20pack%20Wednesday%2017-Jun-2020%2009.30%20Council.pdf?T=10
https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/documents/g2676/Public%20reports%20pack%20Wednesday%2017-Jun-2020%2009.30%20Council.pdf?T=10
https://extranet.salfordccg.nhs.uk/application/files/8815/9256/8600/Combined_Papers_-_Governing_Body_-_24.6.20.pdf
https://extranet.salfordccg.nhs.uk/application/files/8815/9256/8600/Combined_Papers_-_Governing_Body_-_24.6.20.pdf


  

8

transition from response to recovery in an emergency can sometimes be unclear, 
particularly in a prolonged emergency such as COVID-19.  We know that the response 
phase to COVID-19 will be prolonged over a number of months, and possibly years. 
This is likely to require a rapid response to a broad range of impacts which will emerge 
and intensify at various points in time – and these points will be largely determined by 
the ‘curve’ of the outbreak (including any ‘waves’) and the changes in government 
measures nationally, particularly as we continue to see the relaxation of social 
distancing measures.

4.3 Taking into account national guidance, based on discussions with partners across 
Greater Manchester, planning is now for three overlapping phases of recovery:

 Easing out of lockdown: over the next six months most likely to the end of 2020, 
and will clearly overlap with our ongoing response,

 Living with COVID-19: a period at least up to 12 months, most likely to mid-2021, 
and

 ‘Building Back Better’, which in Salford has been enhanced as building back better 
and fairer.

4.4 Please note that throughout this report the word recovery is used in its loosest sense, 
recognising the huge loss that individuals and communities have experienced during 
this crisis, and also recognising the community response and some service changes 
that have been made during this period, which provide opportunities to “build back 
better and fairer”.

4.5 In reality, there will be some inevitable overlap in the various phases, particularly if we 
experience second or third waves of the virus and due to the impact of various 
relaxations in social distancing, changes to health protection advice and evaluation of 
national and local responses. 

5. Current approach to business planning

5.1 The CCG and Council commissioning workplan is being considered in the four areas:

 Adults,
 Childrens,
 Primary Care, and
 All age Mental Health.

Page 72



  

9

5.2 In addition to these, there are the two cross cutting areas of quality and enabling 
transformation. These areas are not as far progressed as the planning workshops had 
not taken place for these prior to the COVID-19 response.  

5.3 The work plans drafted in Feb/March have now been revisited in order to give clarity 
to the commissioning committees and commissioning teams about priority pieces of 
work for the remainder of 2020/21. It has been necessary to defer some pieces of work 
until 2021/22 due to capacity constraints linked to COVID-19 response and recovery.

5.4 Appendix 2 is the outcome of that review for Children’s Services. For completeness 
and information attached at Appendix 3 & 4 are the commissioning work plans for Adult 
Services and Primary Care.

5.5 Normally at this time of year, the work plans are fully complete, reflected in staff 
objectives and reporting on delivery has commenced. The COVID-19 interruption 
means that these current plans:

 include some actions that require further definition,
 may miss some recently emerging work, and
 are missing the full range of work associated with COVID-19 response & recovery.

5.6 What has yet to fully take place is an assessment of our plans against available 
commissioning staff capacity, which is currently still compromised due to the COVID-
19 response and recovery and could be impacted further with any further pandemic 
waves in the coming months.

5.7 It should also be noted that the NHS is anticipating revised national planning guidance 
which is likely to influence our priorities and work plan, although to some extent this 
guidance is already predicted within our plans. So, it is expected that there will be an 
iterative process to refining plans during this year, which may well leave us well placed 
in respect of our work plans for 2021/22.

5.8 In prioritising work and determining an approach, due regard is being given to:

 addressing inequalities, including those which may have been exacerbated by 
COVID-19

 ‘building back better and fairer’
 engaging with the public
 engaging with clinicians and partner organisations, including the VCSE sector
 building social value

Page 73



  

10

6. Recommendations

6.1 The Children’s Commissioning Committee is asked to:

 agree the Children’s Commissioning Work Plan (Appendix 2), noting that it is 
subject to iterations for the reasons outlined.

Name (Author): Karen Proctor

Job title: Director of Commissioning, NHS Salford CCG

Page 74



Appendix 1 – Workstream Strategic Aims

P
age 75



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Strategic Programme 2020 - 21 Actions

SEND review action: All age equipment services

Implementation of the young carers/young adult carer working group to provide expertise and guidance to oversee and contribute to ensure 
that the young carers objectives are progressed
Embed and further develop an integrated locality model to ensure families, children and young people (0-25 yrs) are offered early help which is 
timely and empowers families to take control of their lives

Complex Safeguarding of Children and Young People

Implement a whole systems, asset based approach to tackling Domestic Abuse within the city

Transitions (to include reference to parent and infant mental health, all age approaches and early help)

Develop and implement a strengths based practice model for Salford Children’s Services, exploring the use of “Signs of Safety” and Family 
Group Conferences.

Scope the future commissioning requirements in relation to complex safeguarding

Strengthening Families Programme to evidence a reduction in the number of parents who have repeated children looked after following birth. 
The strategic steering group to identify gaps and scale up

Implement actions following SEND review

Supporting Adults (reference to living well, map to existing work and determine what's next) identify commissioning priorities and develop 
intervention in relation to supporting parents

Implement approach to reducing the numbers of children placed outside the city (Route 29)

Implementation of a new needs-led integrated neuro-development pathway for children and young people aged 0-25

Support the implementation of the national statutory changes and GM developments of the Child Death Overview process as the 
accountability becomes the CCGs
Work in partnership with Salford City Council to develop an integrated approach to quality assurance for children's services, including public 
health

Review of Community paediatric services (i.e. Paediatric Occupational Therapy/Physiotherapy Equipment/orthotics/dietetics

Review Access to Acute Paediatric Services (i.e. PANDA unit provision and Paediatric impatient and surgical beds)

Implement and evaluate the paediatric avoidable admissions care bundle

Explore opportunity for the introduction of Personal Health Budgets for Children and young people in Mental Health Services

Finalise Paediatric Ophthalmology contract arrangements

Determine future commissioning arrangements for Ingleside BCC

Explore options to address the identified need for paediatric end of life and palliative care services

Co-ordinate the approach for parent-infant mental health to provide early intervention to improve attachment and bonding.

GM facilitated funded programme for CYP to train as Thrive champions (intentional peer support)

Finalise, seek approval for and implement new transitions policy and guidance for young people with complex needs and to support improved 
mental health transitions

Review counselling for children & young People within Salford (including bereavement and palliative care)

Review Thrive Plan to identify actions for 2020-21 annual plan (all age MH). Actions to be aligned to All age MH aims.

Mental health in education - Learn from mentally healthy schools, links to physical activity

Develop and implement GM/national pathfinder plan for roll out of Mental Health Support teams in Salford schools, building on CAMHS School 
Link Model, EFS and other good practice

Implement an integrated eating disorder pathway for young people, with non-interruption of care at age 18 and/or earlier access to adult 
services if and when needed

Develop a support and supervision network to support children's workforce to ensure they receive the support they need to carry out their work 
safely and confidently

Family weight management

Continue work with NHS England, Public Health England, primary care and wider partners to increase uptake of immunisations and screening 
across the life course

Population Health funded actions related to Start Well

Start Well - Evaluate and embed agreed recommendations of the Start Well programme

Continue to work with CCG on the redesign of the weight management pathway and strengthen the service for children and young people

Identify the needs for children and young people in Salford to make healthy choices, stay safe and minimise risky behaviours

Childrens Care

Childrens Health

Childrens Mental Health

Childrens Public Health

Appendix 2: Childrens 2020 - 21 Commissioning Work Plan

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Strategic Programme 2020 - 21 Actions

Working with system partners, ensure there is an agreed project scope and plan to deliver the Adults Strategic System Priority of 'Adult 
Social Care Market Shaping'

Define scope for needs assessment to support development and publication of a new Market Position Statement for Salford

Map financial flows in Adult Social Care

Care market planning following budget announcements

Review of Neuro-rehab pathway for personalised packages of care and care pathways

GM Dermatology - Roll out and implementation of the GM model framework, Clinical Pathways for key conditions and GM wide delivery of 
the Decide Dermatology Education and Training programme and review of GM wide advice and guidance

Evaluation of the direct to test pathway for endoscopy at SRFT

Review and scope the delivery of rapid access diagnostics for cancer for Salford patients

Undertake service improvements for wheelchair services including the introduction of personal health budgets

Work with SRFT on improvements to diagnostics performance

Outpatient reform - Ensure main providers meet 30% requirements from Long Term Plan (Digital)

Communication between hospital and primary care (clinical communication group)

Support the transfer of elective orthopaedics from Trafford

Deliver local actions outlined in CCGs cancer plan aligned to GM Cancer Plan

Working with system partners, ensure there is an agreed project scope and plan to deliver the Adults Strategic System Priority of 'Adults 
Integrated Community'
Implement monitoring and reporting systems are developed and implemented for the next phase of transformation new models of care and 
that learning is fed into future commissioning decisions

Further develop Salford's strategic approach to VCSE

Complete the 2020/21 Service Level Agreement and develop longer term integrated commissioning arrangements with the Community for 
Voluntary Services (CVS)

Develop a strategic approach to the reconfiguration of intermediate/community beds across the city

Implement actions from the Carer's Strategy

Working with system partners, ensure there is an agreed project scope and plan to deliver the Adults Strategic System Priority of 'Adults 
Prevention'

CURE Implementation and Evaluation

Strategic review of Salford Community Leisure

Develop a Physical Activities Plan

Working with system partners, ensure there is an agreed project scope and plan to deliver the Adults Strategic System Priority of 'Urgent 
Care Redesign'

Develop proposals for the redesign of health and social care delivery models

Implementation of an urgent treatment centre on the acute site and review the provision of wider urgent care services

Working with system partners, ensure there is an agreed project scope and plan to deliver the Adults Strategic System Priority of 'Adults 
Primary/Community Mental Health'

Promotion of health and well being advice

Commission Healthwatch Salford to undertake engagement work to inform the evaluation of Living Well

Review Mental Health support available to health and care staff

Grants service for VCSE linking to living well

Explore links between Wellbeing Matters and Living Well

Oversee the pilot phase of Living Well in Broughton with a view to further rollout to another neighbourhood during 2020-21

Supporting care leavers

Review mental health care pathways including: role and function of adult mental health residential care and supported accommodation

Implement crisis interventions for adults which provide alternatives to A&E and inpatient services and ensure fidelity to crisis and homes 
based treatment requirements

Suicide prevention training

Quality assurance for MH Placements

Work in partnership with IAPT providers to identify solutions to workforce challenges which are impacting on IAPT performance

Improve pathways between IAPT services and key physical health services such as Health Psychology, Cardiology, COPD and Diabetes, 
and explore potential of how this could contribute to meeting IAPT LTCs FYFV ambition

IAPT and LD, sensory disabilities

Appendix 3: Adults 2020 - 21 Commissioning Work Plan

Mental Health Crisis & Hospital to 
Home

Improving Access to Psychological 
Therapies (IAPT)

Adult Social Care

Adults Care Pathways

Adults Community Health, Care & 
VSCE

Adults Public Health

Adults Mental Health

Urgent Care Services

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



Strategic Programme 2020 - 21 Actions

Increase online access to records

Increase use of Primary Care Apps

Introduce direct booking from NHS111

Support the development of e-consultations (procure something to offer practices and exploit benefits to improve patient flow)

Develop dashboard to support PCNs, to support PCN development/delivery and monitoring of metrics

Action linked to Transformation e.g. GP system procurement

Consider how Primary Care estates can be more sustainable, environmental ambitions

Scope feasibility - Primary Care possibilities in Pendleton Leisure Centre

Determine the scope of the Quays development informed by the progress of the Quays pilot and progress to outline specification

Progress the Lower Broughton scheme to approved agreement with developer

Progress development  of primary care estate in Irlam

Progress development of Limes

Little Hulton - transition to new premises for practice to deliver as normal. Facilitate agreement re community services use

Review, amend and oversee delivery of 2020-21 Salford Standard to reflect priorities in COVID-19 environment

Development of 2021-22 Salford Standard to reflect priorities in a COVID-19 environment

Implement learning from previous poor performing practice - develop and disseminate new policies as required

Test and Deliver Primary Care assurance framework

Support PCNs to implement the additional roles reimbursement scheme

Provide operational support to practices in response to COVID, for example via PCN huddles, review to develop sustainable arrangements 

Improve access to primary care for vulnerable groups, e.g. the homeless population

Improve Primary Care support function arrangements (e.g. ERS interpretation/translation)

Agree business case for new locally optometric services

Review care home GP specification to include extra care requirements – appropriate primary care support for any new extra care facilities – 
effect on primary care of wider commissioning decisions plus housing decisions

Review SPCT COVID services and consider future requirements (e.g. COVID assessment services, AJ Bell testing facility, etc.)

Non-clinical workforce

 Social Value - Apprenticeships

Ways of working - capacity and resilience of workforce

Primary Care Workforce

Appendix 4: Primary Care 2020 - 21 Commissioning Work Plan

Primary Care Digital

Primary Care Estates

Primary Care Reducing Variation & 
Inequalities

Primary Care Transformation

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                          

NAME OF MEETING Commissioning Committee
AGENDA ITEM NO

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information  

DATE OF MEETING 8th July 2020 

Report of: Debbie Blackburn Assistant Director Public Health Nursing 
and Wellbeing 

Date of Paper: April 2020

Subject: Perinatal and Infant Mental Health

In case of query 
Please contact:

Michelle Whittaker michelle.whittaker@salford.gov.uk
0161 793 3531

Strategic Priorities: Please tick which strategic priorities the paper relates to:

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research
Integrated Community Care Services (Adult Services)

 Children’s and Maternity Services
Primary Care
Enabling Transformation

Purpose of Paper:                                   

To seek approval for the business case for developing an integrated perinatal and infant 
mental health offer 

 in response to requirements of the Greater Manchester PIMH specification
 to achieve the PMIH requirement of the Five Year Forward Plan and Long Term plan.

Further explanatory information required

HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP?

The perinatal period is a crucial time for mental 
health and infant development. The proposed 
model will fill current gaps in service provision for 
PMIH.  By developing an integrated offer and 
PMIH offer will benefit the whole system and 
connect adults and children services provision.

WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED?

The new provision will require support from the 
services in the pathway to fully develop an 
integrated model.  Development sessions will be 
held to form the partnership

Page 83

Agenda Item 8

mailto:michelle.whittaker@salford.gov.uk


 

                                                          

WHAT EQUALITY RELATED RISKS 
MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF THIS 
PAPER?  HOW WILL THESE BE 
MITIGATED?

Equality Impact assessment will be complete if 
approval received

DOES THIS PAPER HELP ADDRESS 
ANY EXISTING HIGH RISKS FACING 
THE ORGANISATION?  IF SO WHAT 
ARE THEY AND HOW DOES THIS 
PAPER REDUCE THEM?

The proposed model will address gaps in 
provision for mental health and meet the 
requirements of the GM specification

PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY POSSIBLE 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PAPER.

None noted at this point

PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY CURRENT 
SERVICES OR ROLES THAT MAY BE 
AFFECTED BY ISSUES WITHIN THIS 
PAPER:

IAPT, Homestart, Early Help, Maternity, 
CAMHS, GP and 0-19s will all be key partners in 
the model but not specific role will be affected.

Footnote:

Members of the Group will read all papers thoroughly.  Once papers are distributed no amendments are possible.

1. Introduction 

1.1 Parent and Infant Mental Health is a key priority in the NHS Five Year Forward 
View. Salford has invested in the development of the adult services to support this 
but in order to ensure compliance with all elements of this programme investment 
is required in the infant mental health element. We currently have some provision 
within services but this business case makes a strong case for investment in 
additional provision. The NHS Long Term Plan builds on ambitions of the Five 
Year Forward View for Mental Health in order to  increase access to evidence-
based care for women with moderate to severe perinatal mental health difficulties 
for 66,000 women nationally by 2023/24.
In Greater Manchester we are aiming to ensure access for 3,725 women per year 
by this time. This is equivalent to 10% of Greater Manchester birth rate per year.

1.2 As well as providing specialist support to women, the emotional wellbeing of all 
the 37,000 babies born in Greater Manchester (GM) every year and their parents 
will be promoted through an emotional and mental wellbeing offer in all universal 
services, notably maternity, healthy visiting and primary care working together 
with specialist services for the 1001 critical days from pregnancy to 24 months of 
age 

1.3 This period is also critical in laying foundations for school readiness, in respect of 
which Greater Manchester remains below the national average.

Page 84



 

                                                          

1.4 This business case was brought as part of the Thrive CAMHS update in January 
2020 and was deferred because it was viewed that Long Term Plan monies would 
be made available for this development, however this would mean that we would 
not be compliant with the 5YFW and the potential that access to further LTP 
monies may be restricted, this business case sets out a proposal to enable us to 
comply with the GMCA requirements for a Parent and Infant Mental Health 
service. 

2. Recommendations

2.1 The Service and Finance Group is asked to:

 Approve the Business Case for Implementation of PIMH Attachment and 
psychology service via the preferred option 2: Part Time Clinical Leadership 
and Small Team by a contract variation with CMFT and the CAMHS contract.  

  for Parent and Infant Mental Health as part of Five Year Forward View Funding 

Page 85



  

4

Document Development

Process Yes No Not
Applicable

Comments and Date
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual report) Outcome

Public Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)



Clinical Engagement
(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation)


Partnership development sessions 
held to inform pathway

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social Value and 
the impacts on the Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally?


Options appraisal complete Included in report

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality Analysis 
(EA) of any adverse impacts?
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how 
these will be managed) 


Equality Impact assessment – 
template complete but if approval 
granted a full assessment will be 
completed

No adverse impact identified 
at this point

Legal Advice Sought


Verbal – with SCC Requires joint legal response.

Presented to any informal groups or committees 
(including partnership groups) for engagement or 
other formal governance groups for comments / 
approval? 
(Please specify in comments)

 SFG January 2020 
SCC Leadership
SFG June 2020

Approval deferred 
Approval granted to progress
Approval granted to progress

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is clarity 
in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular part of the 
work.

P
age 86



5

Business Case 

Investment case for Integrated Perinatal and 
Infant Mental Health and Attachment - Parent 
Infant Mental Health Team  

Version Control Log

DATE SECTIONS NAME COMMENT
11.11.19 Version 1 Michelle Whittaker
20.11.19 Version 2 Michelle Whittaker Additions DB
26.11.19 Version 4 Michelle Whittaker Consulted with JS and CM 
26.11.19 Version 5 Deborah Blackburn
27.11.19 Version 6 Michelle Whittaker
29.03.20 Version 7 Michelle Whittaker Amends following SFG feedback
13.05.20 Version 8 Michelle Whittaker Including information from 

published GM model and amends 
to recommendations

Page 87



6

Table of Contents  

1 Executive Summary 

2 Strategic Context 

3. Salford position

4. Greater Manchester developments

5. The Local request

6. Existing investment

7. Financial options

8. Project Implementation 

9. Conclusions and recommendation 

Page 88



7

Section 1 Executive Summary                                                  
1. This business case outlines the proposal for Integrated Perinatal and Infant Mental Health and 

Attachment provision 

1.1. Perinatal mental health and infant mental health are inextricably intertwined and impact on 
each other. There is growing understanding that focusing on the parent alone or infant alone 
is not enough. Working with infants and parents together, within their relationship, provides 
the greatest opportunity to strengthen the psychological wellbeing of each. (Gruendel 2014).

1.2. Salford has a fast growing population and a higher proportion than average of adults 
between ages 20-39.  It is estimate Salford has 40,309 females age 20-39 and of child 
bearing age, this is higher when compared to GM, North West and Nationally.  Salford also 
has a higher proportion of under 5 year olds.  

1.4 Salford City Council and Salford CCG have developed an options appraisal for an integrated 
Salford PIMH service that considers the assets and existing provision whilst acknowledging 
the changing Salford population and predicted growth and the demand on services. 

1.5 Recommendations 
 Implementation of PIMH Attachment and psychology service via the preferred option 2: 

Part Time Clinical Leadership and Small Team by a contract variation with CMFT and 
the CAMHS contract.  

 This would include links to the IAPT perinatal workforce in the attachment team whilst 
also providing additional capacity to the wider IAPT step 3 service.

 A link to IAPT providers as they continue to develop their services against the IAPT 
perinatal self-assessment standards 

 Further develop wider perinatal pathways across the system, including links with CMHT 
provision and adult mental health services.  

 Continue to invest in Homestart PIMH

The report seeks approval for the below:

 Support the recommendations and preferred options of the Integrated PMIH service.
 Approve CAPS contract variation with CAMHS for 2020/2022 to identify a baseline of 

demand and activity for PMIH service.  To the annual value of £113,311
 To approve continuation funding for Homestart PMIH to the annual value of £35,757 from 

April 2021
 Support the implementation of a “Babies Can’t Wait” policy

Total investment requires £91,397 in Year 1 and then £149,071 recurrently

Page 89



8

Section 2 Strategic Context                ………                       …

2. Local/National Context
2.1. Perinatal mental health problems refer to those that occur during pregnancy or up to 3 year 

following the birth of a child. Perinatal mental illness affects up to 20% of women, and covers 
a wide range of conditions. If left untreated, it can have significant and long lasting effects on 
the woman and her family.  Perinatal mental health problems can also have long-standing 
effects on children’s emotional, social and cognitive development

2.2. Infant mental health is the developing capacity of the child from birth to 3 to: Experience, 
regulate and express emotions; form close interpersonal relationships and explore the 
environment and learn all in the context of family, community and mental health expectations 
for young children.  Infant Mental Health is synonymous with healthy social and emotional 
development.

2.3. Perinatal mental health and infant mental health are inextricably intertwined and impact on 
each other. There is growing understanding that focusing on the parent alone or infant alone 
is not enough. Working with infants and parents together, within their relationship, provides 
the greatest opportunity to strengthen the psychological wellbeing of each. (1).

2.4. Emotional and behavioural problems in early life are predictors of poor outcomes in later 
years. A positive child-parent relationship is particularly important for social and emotional 
development (2). The degree of parental and family interaction and how positive or negative 
it is accounts for as much as 30–40% of the variation in antisocial behaviour among children 
(3).

2.5. Because of limitations in data availability, nationally estimates are restricted but figure 1. 
Estimates the burden.

Page 90



9

2.6. The 1001 Critical Days manifesto highlights the importance of intervening early in the 1001 
critical days between conception to age 2 to enhance the outcomes for children.  Attachment 
is the bond between babies and their parents and is important to the baby’s cognitive 
development.  Babies need an adult to feed them but they also need to feel looked after and 
receive affection and love.  When babies get a little older they experience emotion and 
parents need to be able to support them to understand these emotions and coping skills.  
Parents sometimes need a little more support to create that attachment bond and this can be 
difficult if the parents didn’t have this attachment with their own parents and/or if they are 
suffering from mental health needs, or if their child has a disability or additional needs.  

2.7. NHS England has committed to fulfilling the ambition in the Five Year Forward View for 
Mental Health (FYFV), so that by 2020/21 there will be increased access to specialist 
perinatal mental health support in all areas of England, allowing at least an additional 30,000 
women each year to receive evidence-based treatment, closer to home, when they need it. 

2.8. The ambition also includes by 2020/21, that there will be a significant expansion in access to 
high-quality mental health care for children and young people. There will be improving 
outcomes for children and young people will require a joint-agency approach, including 
action to intervene early and build resilience as well as improving access to high- quality 
evidence-based treatment for children and young people, their families and carers. This is 
developed further in the NHS Long Term Plan (LTP), 2019. 

2.9. This new investment has translated into four new mother and baby units and specialist 
perinatal community mental health teams being established. There has been further 
investment identified in the LTP as well as an increase in the remit of these services (FYFV, 
2016, LTP 2019). The expectation is that the specialist perinatal mental health service will 
expand to meet the requirements of the LTP and sets out to see an additional 33,000 women 
per year by 2023/24.

The needs of the parent and infant during the perinatal period cannot be seen      in isolation.  
We need to adopt a perinatal frame of mind which refers to:  

 Thinking about the mother’s needs, the infant’s needs, and the mother-infant 
relationship, as three distinct areas of interest for health and wellbeing. 

 Understanding the father/partner’s mental health, and the effect this will have on the 
mother and the infant. 

 Identifying specialist/additional needs and refer the mother, father or other family 
members to appropriate specialist services when required.

2.10. Greater Manchester (GM) has committed to improve the health and wellbeing of the 
2.8 million people living in the region, as much and as quickly possible.  In particular, GM 
wants more children reaching a good level of social and emotional development and more 
children ready for the start of school aged 5. GM has prioritised perinatal infant mental health 
as a key target for services.  This target is identified in the mental health, early start and school 
readiness strategies.  

2.11. Greater Manchester Combined Authority published the pioneering perinatal and 
parent-infant mental health model that aims to ensure services work in an integrated system. 
It describes how the key mental health services will integrate and work together during the 

Page 91

https://www.england.nhs.uk/mentalhealth/taskforce/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/mentalhealth/taskforce/


10

prenatal and post-natal periods, whilst at the same time supporting the efforts of other services 
that are frequently involved and creating a shared language and understanding of perinatal 
and infant mental health.

2.12. Salford’s Locality Plan includes reference to healthy pregnancies and the new; all age 
mental health commissioning strategy for the locality details the need to focus on perinatal and 
paternal mental health in addition to parent-infant attachment. 

Section 3 Current Position in Salford     
3. Image 1.

Salford has a fast growing population and a higher proportion than average of adults between 
ages 20-39.  It is estimate Salford has 40,309 females age 20-39 and of child bearing age, this 
is higher when compared to GM, North West and Nationally.  Salford also has a higher 
proportion of under 5 year olds.  Details of the 2018 population are presented in Image 2 below.

Image 2.

Page 92



11

3.1. Salford does not have an existing service to model demand and activity, estimates have 
been used based on the evidence used nationally to look at prevalence alongside local 
intelligence about the demands on the city. 

3.2. In Salford, where 3,301 women gave birth in 2017: 
• Estimated number of women with postpartum psychosis: 10 
• Estimated number of women with chronic SMI: 10 
• Estimated number of women with severe depressive illness: 100 
• Estimated number of women with mild-moderate depressive illness and anxiety (lower 

estimate): 335 
• Estimated number of women with mild-moderate depressive illness and anxiety (upper 

estimate): 500 
• Estimated number of women with PTSD: 100 
• Estimated number of women with adjustment disorders and distress (lower estimate): 

500

Estimated number of women with adjustment disorders and distress (upper estimate): 995 
Source of deliveries: Hospital Episode Statistics, NHS Digital. 

3.3. Additional risk factors associated with mental health problems during pregnancy and after 
childbirth reflect those associated in the general population that are high in Salford:

1. History of mental health problems
2. Traumatic childbirth, stillbirth and infant mortality
3. Domestic violence and abuse
4. Poor social support
5. Attachment
6. Drug and alcohol misuse
7. Maternal mental health
8. Teenage parents
9. Child with a disability 

3.4. Greater Manchester Transformation funding was allocated to each locality in 2017/2018. 
Included in the allocation was the expectation of funding for perinatal provision and Salford’s 
contribution to the GM Specialist Perinatal service is detailed below: 

 2019/20 - £85,500
 2020/21 – 171,000 recurrently 

3.5. In late 2018, a workshop was co-hosted with commissioners and clinicians from the 
Tameside and Glossop perinatal pathway and Salford representation from various different 
aspects of the Salford perinatal pathway, including: 

 Health Visiting
 Children’s Commissioning 
 Midwifery
 Adult Mental Health Services 
 Adult Mental Health Commissioning 

Page 93



12

 Dad’s support 
 Early Help
 Homestart

3.6. The outcome of the workshop concluded that Salford has many elements of the Tameside 
and Glossop pathway in place. The main gap in our provision related to the Attachment 
service, specifically a clinical lead. 

Section 4 Greater Manchester developments                  
4. The Greater Manchester Perinatal and Parent Infant Mental Health Service: Championing 1001 

Critical Days report was published May 2020 and sets out the GM ambition.  

4.1. The whole system transformation programme focuses on providing expertise and specialist 
services in perinatal and parent-infant mental health but equally enriches the provision 
across the whole GM system including mental health, maternity, health visiting, GPs 
children’s services, and voluntary, community and social enterprise, etc. The aim is to 
promote emotional and mental wellbeing of parents and infants by developing a whole 
system offer to encompass universal, targeted and specialist offer from conception to the 
age of 2.

4.2. Key areas to develop services are 
 Parent Infant Mental Health Services
 Specialist Perinatal Community Mental Health Services
 Adult Psychological Therapy (IAPT) Perinatal PIMH Services
 Voluntary and Peer to Peer Services

4.3. Increasing access to the specialist perinatal community service; this is a fixed access 
ambition and the target is for 10% of the birth rate to have access to specialist perinatal 
services.

Page 94



13

4.4. Areas of development include:
o Increasing access to evidence based psychological therapies including compassion 

focused therapy, parent-infant psychotherapy, couple, co-parenting and family 
interventions and sign-posting to IAPT where appropriate.

o Care provided by specialist perinatal community mental health services will be available 
from preconception to 24 months after birth by 2023 (care is currently provided from 
preconception to 12 months after birth)

o Increasing support for partners of women experiencing moderate to severe mental 
illness in the perinatal period

o Maternity outreach clinics will integrate maternity, reproductive health and 
psychological therapy for women experiencing mental health difficulties directly arising 
from, or related to, the maternity experience by 2023/24

4.5. In additional to this report the GM PMIH specification and the Tameside and Glossop Annual 
report have been used to model the options available to Salford. The options considered and 
document embedded in appendix.

4.6. Salford City Council and Salford CCG have completed an options appraisal for an integrated 
Salford PIMH service that considers the assets and existing provision whilst acknowledging 
the changing Salford population and predicted growth and the demand on services. 

Section 5 The local request  
…                                  

5. Levels of interventions
5.1. The LTP acknowledges the workforce of the specialist perinatal community service must 

expand to work towards meeting the target
5.2. To address emotional health and wellbeing it is important there are interventions address the 

different levels of support needed whilst focusing on prevention and creating resilience and 
positive environment. Salford proposals to create seamless provision to address concerns in 
transition points the i-Thrive model will be used alongside existing models with ambition to 
radical shift in the way that services are conceptualised and potentially delivered

5.3. Further work to map services against the Thrive model has been done by Stockport and 
being adopted across GM to help identify gaps in provision.

5.4. Child and Adolescent Psychology Service (CAPS) is a well established service at 
Manchester Foundation Trust that is jointly commissioned, multi-agency service, delivering 
effective evidence based interventions with a proven track record of delivering to contract 
and meeting its targets effectively.

o CAPS is highlighted by NICE as a model of best practice for Early Years: Social 
and Emotional Wellbeing.

o The service is CAMHS (NHS) led with a partnership model.  The workforce are 
appointed through multi agencies, and line managed within them, whilst 
operationally the service is managed by CAMHS, NHS. 

Page 95



14

o The CAPS Partnership Board (image 5) holds the service to account, with 
members consisting of senior managers from each agency, including the Early 
Years commissioner and 0-19 Health service.

o CAPS’ structure has proven itself to be an extremely effective model for 
partnership working and the partnership with Adult IAPT Perinatal Service, fits 
with the existing framework, and in line with the Greater Manchester Early Years 
Delivery Model and the Salford Early Help offer. 

o Home-Start is well established partnership in the model and has demonstrated 
very effective perinatal support for families using volunteers, which is very cost 
effective.

Integrated PMIH:

5.5. To ensure we achieve an integrated perinatal and infant mental health provision it is 
recommended Perinatal IAPT and Home-Start would be part of CAPS partnership and each 
agency be a member of the CAPS Partnership Board.  The board would oversee access to 
services, partnership working, outcomes frame and quality control.

 CAPS would establish a “Babies Can’t Wait” policy which fast tracks parents of the 
youngest infants into treatment as we know this is where intervention is most 
effective and most cost-effective and increase access and uptake to Adult Mental 
Health.

 CAPS staff would also be committed to attend Adult Perinatal meetings as 
appropriate. 

 CAPS would provide free specialist training and consultation on attachment, and if 
appropriate, evidence based interventions such as IYB and Video Interactive 
Guidance. Joint working with families would also be possible when appropriate.

 CAPS would provide the required monthly, clinical psychology supervision to the 
HomeStart coordinator.

 
5.6. This model would bridge the gap between adult and infant services and would aim to provide 

a seamless service for parent and infant mental health needs, develop an integrated care 
pathway for parent-infant mental health, increase referrals and uptake of adult mental health 
services for parents of infants and evidence based interventions for parent-child interaction.

Page 96



15

Image 5.

Page 97



16

Section 6    Existing Investment    
6. The Five Year Forward View for Mental Health allocation for Salford perinatal mental health was 

£598,000, to date Salford CCG approved the business case as part of the Adult IAPT provision 
for 2 Perinatal Workers post and 0.25 Perinatal Clinical Lead for Adult IAPT services with an 
allocation of £128,000.  The ambition to increase access to perinatal mental health support by 
2020/21.  

Band WTE Cost Provider Funding Notes
Clinical 
Psychologist/
Psychotherapist 
Cluster lead

8c 0.25 24,109 GMMH FYFV Recurrent

Perinatal IAPT 
Specialists

7 2 101,78 GMMH FYFV Recurrent

Salford’s 
contribution to the 
GM Specialist 
Perinatal service

171,000 FYFV Recurrent 

(Year 1 2019/20 
was - £85,500)

Specialist 
Midwifery 

7 1 64,000 Bolton FT Population 
Health 
funding

Pathway 
development post, 
only available until 
March 2021

PMIH pathway 
development

- - 46,000 SCC Population 
Health 
funding

Project 
management only 
available until 
March 2021

PMIH Peer 
Support service

- - 35,757 Trafford 
and 
Salford

Population 
Health 
funding

Only available until 
March 2021

Dads Matters - - 10,000 Home 
Start 
Trafford 
and 
Salford

CCG 
innovation 
fund

VCSE grant for 12 
month

Section 7         Options for Salford against GM model
7. A full optional appraisal has been completed against the GM model and service specification this 

has identified the gaps in Salford.  The options are presented in the appendix with risk, 
opportunities and financial information. The recommendation of this business case is for option 
2.

Page 98

https://www.england.nhs.uk/mentalhealth/taskforce/


17

7.1. Option 2: Part Time Clinical Leadership and Small Team
This option offers 1WTE clinical leadership but split across the adults and childrens.  It includes 
Perinatal IAPT roles and homestart that are existing funded roles in Salford.  It offers a 1WTE 
early attachment with specialist PIMH and 0.5WTE admin.

Staff Band WTE Cost Alignment 
with current 
Salford 
provision 

Notes

Clinical 
Psychologist/Psychotherapist 
Cluster lead

8c 0.25 24,109 0 Existing funded 
IAPT Perinatal lead 
in GMMH which is 
0.25 

Clinical Child 
Psychologist/Psychotherapist 
locality lead

8b 0.5 40,409 40,409  

Perinatal IAPT specialists 7 2 101,878 0 x2 perinatal IAPT 
workers existing 
funding. 

Early Attachment specialists 
(HV/Infant Psychotherapist/
Midwife/Clinical psychologist)

7 1 57,674 57,674

Specialist Perinatal and Infant 
Mental health Midwife

7 1 63,449 0 GM Population 
health funding 
Salford Start well 
only until 2020-21

Admin 4 0.5 15,231 15,231  
Embedded Home Start PIMH 
worker & volunteers

 1 35,757 35,757 Homestart Trafford 
and Salford jointly 
commissioned.  In 
year 2 of contract.  
CAMH 
transformation 
funding

Total 5.25 Full Cost 
£280,833

Additional 
cost: 

£149,071

Section 8                    Project Implementation   …………                  

8. Implementation plan
8.1. If approved the implementation of would begin with immediate effect and varied into the core 

CAMHS contract. It is envisaged if approved, additional staff will be recruited and start from 
September 2020.

8.2. Governance and monitoring
Progress and performance would to be monitored via quarterly performance reports and 
quarterly contract monitoring meeting, and would also be reported via SFG. 

Page 99



18

8.3. Key Performance Indicators
 Number of referrals made to/seen by Adult Perinatal Services
 Number of referrals made to/seen by CAPS
 Improvement in parental depression (as measured by valid and reliable measure PHQ 9)
 Improvement in parental anxiety (as measured by valid and reliable measure GAD 7)
 Improvement in maternal sensitivity (as measured by valid and reliable measure, 

Mothers’ Object Relations Scales, MORS)
 Waiting times to be seen (NHS targets plus “Babies Can’t Wait” target)
 Number of parent volunteers recruited
 Number of parents supported by parent volunteers
 Uptake of volunteering, education and employment by parents 3 months post 

intervention

Section 9      Conclusions and Recommendation    …………                  

9. Recommendations and preferred options
The recommendations are: 

 Implementation of PIMH Attachment and psychology service via preferred option 2: Part 
Time Clinical Leadership and Small Team by a contract variation with CMFT and the 
CAMHS contract.  

 This would include links to the IAPT perinatal workforce in the attachment team whilst 
also providing additional capacity to the wider IAPT step 3 service.

 A link to IAPT providers as they continue to develop their services against the IAPT 
perinatal self-assessment standards 

 Further develop wider perinatal pathways across the system, including links with CMHT 
provision and adult mental health services.  

 Continue to invest in Homestart PIMH

9.1. The report seeks approval for the below:
 Support the recommendations and preferred options of the Integrated PMIH service.
 Approve CAPS contract variation with CAMHS for 2020/2022 to identify a baseline of 

demand and activity for PMIH service.  To the annual value of £113,311
 To approve continuation funding for Homestart PMIH to the annual value of £35,757 from 

April 2021
 Support the implementation of a “Babies Can’t Wait” policy

Page 100



19

9.2. Total investment required 

Staff Band WTE Cost Notes
Clinical Child 
Psychologist/Psychothera
pist locality lead

8b 0.5 40,409

Admin 4 0.5 15,231
Early Attachment 
specialists (HV/Infant 
Psychotherapist/
Midwife/Clinical 
psychologist)

7 1 57,674

Embedded Home Start 
PIMH worker & volunteers

1 35,757 Funding available until March 
2021

Total £91,397 year 1  

£149,071 recurrent

Name Michelle Whittaker
Public Health Strategic Manager

Page 101



20Page 102



21

Appendix
1. Gruendel, J. M. (2014, March). Two (or more) generation frameworks: A look across and within. Retrieved 

from: http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
2. Fonagy P, Target M, Cottrell D (2005) What works for whom? A critical review of treatments for children and 

adolescents. New York: Guilford Press 
3. Patterson GR, DeBaryshe D, Ramsey E (1989) A developmental perspective on antisocial behavior. American 

Psychiatry 44: (2) 329–35

Appendix 

GM Perinatal  
Infant Mental Health Programme Report Nov 2019.docx

GM PIMH Service 
Specification.doc

PIMH_TG_2018_ann
ual_report adapted for GM.docx

Final Parent Infant 
Mental Health Care Pathway for circulating.pdf

Page 103

http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf
http://www.cga.ct.gov/coc/PDFs/two-gen/report_gruendel.pdf


22

Options appraisal

A full optional appraisal has been completed against the GM model and service specification and 
this has identified the following gaps in Salford.

Staff Band WTE Cost - Notes

Clinical Psychologist/Psychotherapist locality 
lead

8b 1 80,818

Early Attachment specialists (HV/Infant 
Psychotherapist/
Midwife/Clinical psychologist)

7 2 115,348 0.04 WTE HV in 
core service for 
training (approx. 
12days per 
year) not funded 
directly

Social Worker 6 1 48,925
Admin 4 1 30,763
Home Start PIMH worker & volunteers  1 35,757 From March 

2021

Further consideration to the Salford system and asset was completed and the following 
options considered against risks and opportunities.

Option 1: Full Perinatal and Infant Mental Health and Attachment Service as Described in 
Greater Manchester Model 
Taken from the Greater Manchester specification for Greater Manchester Parent Infant Mental Health 
Service Specification and based on the attachment service model in Tameside and Glossop.  This 
model includes a multi-disciplinary team across adults and children’s roles in an integrated team. 

Staff Band WTE Cost - Alignment 
with current 
Salford 
provision 

Notes
Top scale point and on 
costs used for 
estimates

Clinical 
Psychologist/Psychotherapist 
Cluster lead

8c 0.33 32,274 8,165 
(0.08WTE)

Existing funded IAPT 
Perinatal lead in GMMH 
which is 0.25 

Clinical 
Psychologist/Psychotherapist 
locality lead

8b 1 80,818 80,818  

Early Attachment specialists 
(HV/Infant Psychotherapist/
Midwife/Clinical psychologist)

7 2 115,348 115,348 0-19 service has 4 
identified HVs - one in 
each locality with lead for 
PIMH approx. 0.

Embedded Mental Health 
practitioner

7 1 57,674 0 x2 perinatal IAPT workers 
existing funding. 
Reaching in from AMH 
with a service 
development role in AMH

Page 104



23

Social Worker 6 1 48,925 48,925  
Admin 4 1 30,763 30,763  
Embedded Home Start PIMH 
worker & volunteers

 1 35,757 35,757 Homestart Trafford and 
Salford jointly 
commissioned.  In year 2 
of contract.  CAMH 
transformation funding

Total 7.33 Estimated 
Full Cost 
£437,559

Additional 
Cost 

£319,776

Risks
 Financial cost 
 Does not take into account the Salford system ‘as is’ 
 May duplicate some elements of existing provision
 No risk stratification known to support the Tameside and Glossop model which would 

provide a better picture of required resource to meet demand 
 Potential recruitment challenges for full time clinical posts 
 Large investment in clinical lead, smaller investment in other disciplines 
 Ensuring that IAPT perinatal workers are seen as part of the attachment team and fulfil 

relevant duties e.g. (training / supervision / guidance in the wider system and escalated 
cases where appropriate for the Perinatal IAPT lead)

 Capacity challenges for Band 7 given current challenges in IAPT step 3. 

Opportunities
 ‘Gold standard’ model supported by GM
 Greater capacity created via this model to support with workforce development, receive 

escalation cases and provide supervision to the wider system
 Includes specific links to social work 

Option 2: Part Time Clinical Leadership and Small Team
This option offers 1WTE clinical leadership but split across the adults and childrens.  It includes 
Perinatal IAPT roles and homestart that are existing funded roles in Salford.  It offers a 1WTE early 
attachement with specialist PIMH and 0.5WTE admin.

Staff Band WTE Cost Alignment 
with current 
Salford 
provision 

Notes

Clinical 
Psychologist/Psychotherapist 
Cluster lead

8c 0.25 24,109 0 Existing funded 
IAPT Perinatal lead 
in GMMH which is 
0.25 

Clinical Child 
Psychologist/Psychotherapist 
locality lead

8b 0.5 40,409 40,409  

Page 105



24

Perinatal IAPT specialists 7 2 101,878 0 x2 perinatal IAPT 
workers existing 
funding. 

Early Attachment specialists 
(HV/Infant Psychotherapist/
Midwife/Clinical psychologist)

7 1 57,674 57,674

Specialist Perinatal and Infant 
Mental health Midwife

7 1 63,449 0 GM Population 
health funding 
Salford Start well 
only until 2020-21

Admin 4 0.5 15,231 15,231  
Embedded Home Start PIMH 
worker & volunteers

 1 35,757 35,757 Homestart Trafford 
and Salford jointly 
commissioned.  In 
year 2 of contract.  
CAMH 
transformation 
funding

Total 5.25 Full Cost 
£280,833

Additional 
cost: 

£149,071

Risks
 Lack of social work input 
 Relies on changes to the wider system to fully integrated the approach 
 Unknown demand in Salford, therefore there is a risk that the smaller capacity within this 

team will not meet demand. 
 Ensuring that IAPT perinatal workers are seen as part of the attachment team and fulfil 

relevant duties e.g. (training / supervision / guidance in the wider system and escalated 
cases where appropriate for the Perinatal IAPT lead)

Opportunities 
 Integrated approach into the wider system 
 Clinical expertise is split across adult and children roles, providing a greater knowledge and 

expertise to support and influence the system. 
 Recognises and complements the wider Salford system e.g. perinatal provision in IAPT
 Utilises the finances available to maximum effect 
 Potential to test this approach and review / invest further as appropriate in the future 
 Early intervention is known to have a greater impact on positive outcomes for people

Option 3:  Clinical Leadership 
This option just offers the clinical leadership split across the two roles with specialist knowledge 
across both adults and Childrens.

Staff Band WTE Cost Alignment with current 
Salford provision 

Notes

Clinical 
Psychologist/ 
Psychotherapist 

8c 0.5 48,218 There is already a funded 
IAPT Perinatal lead in 
GMMH which is 0.25WTE 

Existing 
funding 

Page 106



25

Cluster lead 24,109

Clinical child 
Psychologist/ 
Psychotherapist 
locality lead

8b 0.5 40,409  

Total 1 Estimated 
Full Cost: 
£88,627

Additional Cost: £64,518

Risks 
 Wider team is likely to be significantly challenged in meeting demand 
 Without funding a wider team, capacity to deliver training and supervision to the wider 

workforce would be reduced 
 Knowledge and skills would sit with one / two people and would not be disseminated across 

the system 
 Ensuring that IAPT perinatal lead fulfils relevant duties e.g. (training / supervision / guidance 

in the wider system and escalated cases)
 Cost implications of significant clinical leadership supporting cases without a tiered team to 

support with this approach. 
 Includes risks identified in option 2

Opportunities 
 Leadership could be split over two 5.0WTE to support wider skill set 
 Service could be developed over time, starting from small resource to learn more about 

demand. 
 Clinical leadership will help to shape and influence development in the wider system 

Option 4: Do Nothing
Risks

 Currently, as we have no provision for attachment services, people may be presenting at 
more intensive (and higher cost) services. Lack of investment may create longer term costs. 

 Early intervention is known to have a greater impact on positive outcomes for people – lack 
of investment will impact on ability to provide early intervention. 

 Would not meet 5YFV and LTP objectives

Opportunities 
 No associated costs in the short term

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 109

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 131

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 11 March, 2020.
	5 Finance Update (David Warhurst)
	Children's Com Com - Integrated Fund Financial Plan Report (2020-21)

	6 Recovery Planning (Charlotte Ramsden)
	7 Business Planning (Karen Proctor)
	Appendix 1 - Strategic aims v2
	App2 Childrens Plan for Com Com 8 July 20
	app3 Adults Plan
	app4 Primary care plan

	8 Perinatal and Infant Mental Health (Deborah Blackburn / Michelle Whittaker)
	11 0-19 Service Annual report (Deborah Blackburn)
	12 Ingleside Birth and Community Centre (Karen Proctor / Nick Browne / Eejay Whitehead)

